
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The City of Celina presents the City's financial statements. This overview is an analysis of the 
financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. This discussion 
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes. Comparative data 
is also presented for government-wide and fund financial statements at the end of this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

• Government-wide net position reported in the Statement of Net Position is $33,390,135. 
Of this amount 524,944.012 is invested in capital assets or restricted for debt service and 
capital projects, and the balance of S8,446,123 is available as unrestricted net position. 

• Government-wide net position increased by S6,592,763 during 2015. 
• Elia of the City's fund financial statements reported changes in equity as follows: 

General Fund — S1,547,869 increase 
Water & Sewer Fund - $2,923,281 increase 
Debt Service Fund - $104,705 increase 
Capital Projects Fund - S3.858,602 decrease 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT:  

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial 
statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. These provide 
information about (he activities of the City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City's 
financial condition. They reflect the flow fioial ecmwmic resources in a manner similar to the 
financial reports of a business enterprise. 

The fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. Governmental 
fund statements tell how services were financed in the short-term, as well as what resources 
remain for future spending. Governmental funds reflect theflow qt.  current financial resources. 
Proprietary fund statements offer short and long -term financial information about the activities 
the government operates like businesses, such as the water and sewer system. The statements are 
followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports 
the information in the financial statements. 

The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for 
full disclosures for the government-wide statements and the fund financial statements, 
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REPORTING THE CITY AS A IYHOLE-GOLERAMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS:  

The Statement of Net Posftion and the Statement of Activities 

Government-wide financial statements provide an analysis or the City's overall financial 
condition and operations. The primary objective of these statements is to show whether the 
City's fimmcial condition has improved or deteriorated as a result of thc year's activities. 

The Statement of Net Position includes all the City's assets and liabilities while the Statement of 
Activities includes all the revenue and expenses generated by the City's operations during the 
year. Government-wide statements utilize the accntal basis (.?1' accounting, which is the same 
rnethod used by tnost private sector companies. 

All of the current year's revenue and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. The City's revenue is divided in(o the followina categories: 1) charges for 
services. 2) operating grants and contributions. 3) capital grants and contributions and .4) general 
revenues not associated with any specific program function. All of the City's assets are reported 
whether they serve the current year or future years. Liabilities are also reported regardless or 
whether they must be paid in the current or future years. 

These two statements report the City's net position and the changes in it. The City's net position 
(the difference between assets and liabilities) provides one measure of the City's financial health 
or financial position. Over lime, increases or decreases in the City's net position are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall 
health of the City, you should consider non-financial factors as well, such as changes in the 
City's request for services from citizens and the condition of the City's facilities. 

in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City has two kinds of 
activities: 

Governmental Activities — Most of the City's services are reported here, includinu. 
administration, judicial, fire and emergency services, public works, police, parks and recreation, 
infrastructure and the main street project. Propeny taxes and state and federal grants finance 
most or these activities, 

Business-t_twe Activities — The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the cost of certain 
services it provides. The City's water and sewer system operations and sanitation services arc 
reported here, 
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REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS: 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed infornmtion about the most significant funds. The 
City's administration establishes funds to help it control and rnanage money for particular 
purposes. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental funds and proprietary funds use 
different accounting approaches. 

Governmental Funds — The City reports most of its basic services in governmental funds_ 
Governmental funds use the nwdified accrual basis qf accounting (a method that measures the 
receipt an(I disbursement of cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) 
and they report balances that are available for future spending. Governmental fund statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general operations and the basic services it 
provides. We describe the accounting differences between governmental activities (reported in 
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in 
reconciliation schedules found at the bottom of each of the governmental fund financial 
statements. 

Proprietaty Funds — The ProprietaryiEnterprise fund is used to account for operations that are 
financed in a manner similar to private business entelprises where the costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing water and sewer services to the general public on a continuing basis 
are financed through user charges. 

GOI/ERNIIENT-IVIDE FINANCIAL ANAL1WIS: 

Net position serves as one useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of 
the City, the combined net position exceeded liabilities by S33,390,135 and 526,797,372 at the 
close of FY 2015 and FY 2014, respectively. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS: 

The combined net position of the City's activities increased from 526,797,372 to 533,390,135 or 
56,592363 during 2015, Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to 
finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling 
legislation, or other legal requirements was S8,446,123. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE Curs FUNDS: 

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds S12,273,765 and proprietary fund 
S13.695,800 reported combined fund balance and net position of 525,969.565 a S796,363 
increase from last year. Water and sewer operations also provided S2,923,281 of the increase. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION: 

Capital Assets — the City's investment in capital assets reported in governmental activities and 
business-type activities was $26,191,788 and $19,731,271, respectively. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment and vehicles. The change in 
the City's net investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $4,579,594 and 
S2.827,592 in each of the respective activities. Additional information on capital asset activity 
can be found in note 5 to the financial statements, 

Long-term Debt at year-end the City had 529,899,406 in bonds and capital leases outstanding — 
an increase of S882,179. Additional information on long-term liabilities can be found in note 6 
to the financial statements. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS & ECONOMIC FACTORS: 

Our employees at the City of Celina constantly strive to price solutions for the needs of our 
community. As a connection between our citizens and the City Council, our City staff interacts 
with the community to develop a vision for growth, set goals for the use of revenues, and to 
foster innovative change within the community. 
As a City. we have governmental responsibility for that which is tangible and measurable-steel, 
asphalt, water and concrete. And, also for "community," the intangible "quality of life" 
initiatives — public safety, programs offered through our parks and recreational leagues, our 
library. the festivals and annual events such as Cajun Fest. Balloon Fest, Splash & Blast. Other 
community events such as Farmers Markets, lvlovie Nights, and Trick or Treat on thc Square are 
growing every year. 

Our city infrastructure programs along with our community programs are all "building Celina." 
With proper planning and execution of both, people will not only come to Celina, they will stay. 
We just completed a Citizen Survey to identify citizens priorities for the Council's annual 
budget retreat at the end of July. In one way, the survey is a report card (with 93% reporting 
satisfaction with Celina's Quality of Life and 98% feeling safe here), in another. a guide to 
ensure our focus is on citizen priorities. This survey will aid us in preparing for the future of 
Celina. The survey results will provide guidance for us on what type of special event the 
community seeks, what park amenities they want and which additional services are essential. We 
will learn why citizens came to Celina and why they chose to stay here. This valuable 
information will add a community perspective to our process and enable the Council in setting 
the budget to deliver and plan for citizen identified priorities. 

One goal for every year is to continue to increase sales tax receipts by providing niore 
opportunities for our citizens and visitors to shop locally. Since 2011, shopping opportunities in 
Celina have increased and so have our sales uix receipts. In 2015, revenues are up by nearly 
20%. Sales tax receipts spread the burden of governmental responsibility (Fire, Police, street 
construction and repairs, water, sewer and parks) amongst all who use the services. The openine 
of the new Fire Station in early August, the completion of street repairs on Sunset and Utah in 
late August, and Ash Street in October, are examples of projects funded by our tax dollars. 
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Ectmoinic Development success can be achieved by creatine attractive and competitive business 
environments where businesses choose our conununity over others. Celina is an emerging 
economy with single family homes being built in every area of our community. Additions in 
Light Farms. Carter Ranch and Heritage will be joined by development in Parkside. Lakes of 
Mustang Ranch, Creeks of Legacy. and Wellspring. New water and waste-water infrastructure 
slated lbr construction beginning in October through mid-2016 will open the Southeast sector of 
our City for additional development including planned communities which will provide new 
options for residential. retail and service sector business development. The recent purchase of 
additional land at Wilson Creek Park and the future construction of a walkindhiking trail linking 
Old Celina Park and Wilson Creek Park will begin our intertnodal initiative for Celina and 
enhance connectivity across our City. 

An effective economic development equation includes partnering with our community to create a 
destination that people will treasure. Great schools, special events, and collaborative approach to 
recruiting and retaining our business citizens will guide our journey. We also want to include 
residents in the design of where and how our community grows. Many of our best ideas come 
from brainstorming sessions with residents. Every day they see things that can be impmved and 
have ideas on how it can be done. The continued gathering of information. from the survey, from 
resident communications to elected leaders and to staff, provides the feedback to help us to 
evaluate and assess our perfOrmance. 

Our goals include creating positive business environments that facilitate sustainable growth 
throueh great customer service delivery, strategic design and location for our infrastructure 
investments and the management of our future through advanced planning. While our employees 
continue to deliver excellent customer service. we always look to the citizens of Celina to learn 
more from them about our community needs so we can constantly strive for perlbrmance 
standards and meet or exceed their expectations. 

The City of Celina has increased its use of social media to help in collaborating with citizens on 
issues that concern them. We will continue using social media to network. organize and reach 
out to our customers on chanties to our systems, special events, volunteer opportunities and 
happenings in Celina. We continue to create avenues for citizens to obtain data via our website. 
We encouracze citizens to use the data to improve their knowledge of how local government 
operates. 

Public infrastructure and public safety remained a priority during fiscal year 2014-2015 and will 
remain a priority in the 2015-2016 fiscal year. Several projects will be started and completed 
next year that will fulfill promises to our citizens. The Ash Street road construction project 
finished in fiscal year 2015 which provides a long needed improvement to a road that is 
partunount in the connection between Preston Road and Business 289, it also included the 
redesign and construction of a bridge that aids in the alleviation of flooding to the sulToundinu 
neighborhood. The reconstruction of Sunset Boulevard near Celina Elementary school will be 
completed before the end of 2016. 
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The construction of new fire station was completed in fiscal year 2015 and we relocated our 
existing lire station to a more viable location on Preston Road. Celina citizens have awaited this 
construction for many years. The new design includes three bays to accommodate all of the fire 
department vehicles currently used to provide public safety. 

We added two new building inspectors to aid in the review of building plans and the inspection 
of new hotnes. When council approved this measure it provided a new level of customer service 
not only to our current residents, but also to our new builders, developers and the citizens of the 
future. 
Each of our employees provides a uniqueness to our team. We began bridging the gap between 
technology and access to government by using the special talents of our employees. Our citizens 
and our employees have an expectation for our organization to be absolutely transparent. Now 
you can find all of our financial information online with just the click of a button. The City of 
Celina earned the Gold Award from the Texas Comptroller's office for Transparency in 
Financial Management. We also continued to renovate our wcbsite to make it easier for our 
employees to provide accessible information for our citizens. 

The City provided three new vehicles for our Police Department to aid them in their goal or 
preventing crime and providing support to our citizens in their time of need. By anticipating the 
rate of growth for the City, for our next budget cycle, we have asked and cotilicii approved three 
more fire personnel as well as four new police ofTicers. Once again this shows council's 
continued support for our community's public safety needs. 

The Police Department's Criminal Investigation division has been using an innovative case 
management system that facilitated the effective and efficient investigation of offenses, case 
processing. and case presentation to the District Attorney's Office. New policies affecting 
property forfeiture has been working for a year now. A property and evidence management 
system was created to provide effective, efficient, and code compliant operation of the property 
and evidence room. 

The Fire Department's hazard mitigation plan is in place. They continued to develop the Texas 
Best Practices program to improve our service delivery processes. The Fire Department installed 
the City's first all-hazard alert warning siren at Old Celina Park for immediate warning: 
applications during special events. 

Our Parks department continued to expand our programs. They continued to provide baseball, 
basketball, flag football, girls softball, 7-on-7 football, soccer and adult softball tournaments to 
our citizens as well as to many visitors of our community. 

As development comes to Celina, our Planning and Development staff has been working hard to 
educate our development community on the International Code Council's 2012 Building & Fire 
Codes. Celina also adopted the city's first hotelímotel tax, Many projects were completed this 
year including the rezoning of three different tracts and adding three annexed tracts into one 
Master Planned Community PD (Creeks of Legacy), The Preston Road Overlay design 
requirements were also updated. And the staff aided in the design and completion of two 
commercial projects, O'Reillys Auto Part and First United Methodist Church. 
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In 2016, we wiH continue to constantly work to reinvent government into a model that listens to 
and serves the needs of our citizens as well as competitively look for more efficient and effective 
service methods for our community. 

The main goal the Council has charged staff with is to build a community that is prepared for our 
future and that reverently remembers our past. Together, with our citizens, we are building a 
great Celinal 

The City of Celina continued to enjoy tremendous constant growth in 2015, The City issued 478 
building perrnits, compared to 346 permits hist year. Accordingly, permit fee collections have 
increased by $446,346 or 34 percentage points for the same period. For the fiscal year 2014-
2015, the City collected $1,767,856 in permit fees cornpared with $1,321,510 for the same 
period last year, The City of Celina possesses a vast amount of land that makes it attractive to 
housing developers. The increase in building permits and fees can be contributed to the health 
enviromnent in housing market for the region as well as the state, 

The City of Celina's portion of sales tax collection increased from $505,221 in FY 2013-2014 to 
$603,949 in FY 201.4-2015 (figures do not include CEDC or CCDC collections). The City is 
experiencing a 19.5 percentage points or $98,728 increase in sales tax collections in FY 2014-
2015. The increase follows the trend through the state. The reduction in unemployment in 
conjunction with the sales tax collection from internet purchases has contributed to the increase. 
The opening of new retail shops and restaurants played a role in the increase of sales tax revenue 
as well. Management anticipates that this increase will continue through FY 2015-2016 with a 
moderate pace, 

Total assessed value of the properties for the City of Celina increased front S554,2I0,534 in FY 
2014 to $561,671,666 FY 2015. With the exception of FY 2010, the City of Celina has enjoyed 
an increase in its property values since FY 2001. This increases are representing a city that is in a 
health growth mode, In FY 2014-2015 the a.ssessed property value has increased by 1.35%, This 
increase mainly resulted from new constniction in housing in the City along with annexation of 
new parcels of land. Reviewing the history of thc City's assessed property values provides 
evidence of the City's measurable gra wth in last decade. 

Year , Assessed Value % Change , Year , Assessed Value % Change , 
2004 143,297,951 2010 455,200,487 -1.7% 

2005 181,232497 26.5% 2011 461,849,745 1.5% 

2006 224,412,066 23.8% /012 482,062,285 4.4% 

2007 284,847,298 26.9% 2013 507,835,848 5.3% 

2008 418,824,688 47.0% 2014 554,210,534 9.1% 

2009 463,300,493 _ 10.6% 2015 561,671,666 1.3% 
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Total water sales for the Fy 2015 has increased by substantial amount. This increase is a direct 
result of new developments and increase of number of houses in those developments along with 
installation of new and accurate electronic meter system. Total revenue from water sales for the 
FY 2015 was $3,489.083 which represent 25 % increase over previous year. 

A review of the history of the City's water sales over past few years indicates a healthy average 
increase of over 19 percentage points in water sales. History of water sales is iHustrated below: 

Year Water Sales % Change Year Water Sales _ % Change 

2004 818,403 2010 1,944,348 21.3% 

2005 1,157,066 41.4% 2011 2,549,933 31.1% 

2006 1,871,163 61.7% 2012 2,548,942 0.0% 

2007 1,298,932 -30.6% 2013 2,772,632 8.8% 

2008 1,598,567 23,1% 2014 2,780,983 0.3% 

2009 1,602,364 0.2% 2015 3,489,083 25.5% 

Total sewer increased front S1,160,403 in FY 2014 to 51,409,070 in FY 2014-2015, The 
increase of $248,667 or 21.4 percentage points is primarily the result of increase in number of 
custorners and partially is due to accurate reading of the water meters that correlate to sewer 
sale.. A review of the history of the City's sewer sales over past few years indicates a healthy 
average increase of more than 14 percentage points in sewer sales. History of sewer sales is 
illustrated below: 

Year Sewer Sales % Change Year Sewer Sales % Change 

2004 341,976 2010 774,022 35,2% 

2005 403,498 18,0% 2011 946,269 22.3% 

2006 509,798 26.3% 2012 994,332 5.1% 

2007 485,948 -4.7% 2013 1.060,773 6.7% 

2008 546,556 12.5% 2014 1,160,403 9.4% 

2009 572,299 4.7% 2015 1,409,070 21.4% 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for 
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, 
including financial information for the City's two component units, please do not hesitate to 
contact Mike Foreman, City Manager, or Jay Toutounchian, Director of Finance, by phone at 
(972) 382-2682 or by E-rnail at inforemanacelina-tx.gov  or jtoutounchian@iselina-tx,eov 

14 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 

1407 



CITY OF CELINA, TExAs 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

Governmental Aetivilies Business-type Activities Total 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Assets 
Current ,acal other assets S 15.914..705 S 14,428.633 S 	7.926.046 S 	5,469,492 $ 23.840,751 S 21.9.125 
lkferred wallows ofi esoulces 154.369 21,77) 176,140 
Capital avie6., net 26.191,788 21,612,194 19,711.271 16.903,679 45,923,059 lg,515,873 

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 42,260,802 38,0.10,827 27.679.088 22.373,171 69,939,950 60,413,998 

Liabilities 
Other liabties 3,3114,19U 2,052,9)0( 2,N6 .6h5 1,31.4,263 6.245.1155 3.577,25' 

ong-term debt 19,182,337 19,S83,876 11.1:1,623 10,355,499 30.303.90 30.239.375 

Tutal 22,560,527 21,936,864 13,983.288 11.679,7(12 36,549,815 33,616,626 

Nei Position 
N,A in% eminent in capital asset6 II,693,312 7,667,954 11,575.656 9,589,572 20.268,968 17.257.526 
Restricted Ra debt service 646,075 541,370 646,075 541,370 
Restricted foi capital projects 4,028,969 3,994,414 4,02X,969 3,994 Al4 
Our:shield 6,325,979 3,900.225 2,120,144 1,103.837 8.446.123 5,004,062 

Total Net Position 19,694,335 16,103,963 $ 13,695,800 $ 10.693,409 $ 33,390,135 $ 26.797,372 

1$ 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 	3,755,293 $ 	2,082,964 $ 	7,518,311 $ 	6,154,311 $ 	11,273.624 $ 	8.237,275 

Operating grantsicontnbutions 214,115 61,432 214,115 61,432 

Capital grunts/contributions 625,237 2,403,093 45.289 670,526 2,403,093 

General revenues: 
Ad valoretn taxes 3.739.841 3,333.015 3,739.841 3,333.015 

Sales taxes 603.949 505,221 603,949 505,221 

Franchise Taxes 364,763 320,805 364,763 320.505 

Special events & fundraising 221,696 245,163 221,696 245,163 

Other 217,124 572,570 39.470 11,703 256,594 584,273 

Total revenucs 9.742.018 9,524,263 7,603,090 6,166,014 17,345.108 15,690,277 

INpcnses. 

Administration 1,170,613 1,203.576 1,170,613 1,203,576 

Judicial 84,853 88,531 84,853 148,531 

Fire and emergency services 1,453,477 1.213,416 1,453,477 1,213,416 

Development services 529,067 708,220 529,067 708,220 

Public works 824,527 725,922 824,527 725,922 

Police department 1,114,266 806,191 1,114,266 806,191 

Parks and recreation 886,212 448,202 886,212 448,202 

Library 140,104 134,815 140,104 134,815 

ltifrastrucnire 198,868 202,699 198,868 202,699 

Main street project 70,510 26,869 70,510 26,869 

Bond issuance costs 72,326 • 72,126 

Interest and fiscal charges 635,090 585.469 635,090 585,469 

Water. Sewet and Sanitation Services 4,284,809 3.496,782 4.284.809 3,496,782 

Total Expenses 7,107,587 6,216,236 4,284,1109 3,496,782 11,392,396 9,713,018 

Excess (deficiency) 

before nansfers 2,634,431 3,308,027 3,318,281 2,669,232 5,952,712 5,977.259 

Transfers 39.5,000 348,050 (395,000) (348,050) 

Change in Net Position 3,029,431 3,656,077 2,923,281 2,321,182 5,952,712 5,977,259 

Net Position - October I 16,103,963 12,447,886 10,693,409 8,372,227 26,797,372 20,820,113 

Prior period adjustment 560,941 79,110 640,051 

Nei Position - September 30 $ 19,694,335 $ 16j03,9f13 $ 13,695,800 S 10,693,409 $ 	33,390,115 $ 	26,797,372 
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CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS 
COM PA RATI V E BALANCE SHEETS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEVUEM HER 30. 2015 and 2014 

Aswts 

General 

Debt 

Syr% ice 

Capital 

Projects 

Governmental 
Total 

Rinds 
2014 2015 

Cash anti cash equivalents $ 	6,106,5(i2 $ 	666.506 S $ 	6.773.068 $ 	4.892.94 
šrintnt in Tpi o) 2.375 2.375 2.375 

Cash and ctn.!) equivalents -  resit ieted )0,091.873 100)1.s71 14.161.7o4 

Sales taw. receivable 105,44 i f 05:443 96.030 

Moroi:. taxes reeeivable, net 31.335 5.996 38.331 47.950 

EMS receivable 30.587 30.587 10..586 

Grants receivabk 300010 100.000 
( 	teceit 48.10' 48,01 / 63.056 

Prepaid tient. 19.941 19.941 20.784 
Due from tniwr funds 490,M0 400,0(0 400.000 
Du: born c; ;mix mem units ih,916 3s.9 I() 45.581  

Total Assets $ 	7.084,181 672.502 S 	10,091.873 5 	17,848,556 $ 	18.761.001 

Liabilities 

Account,  payable 111.139 380,910 712.149 538.370 
&enlist expenses 99.815 153 t19.968 524,915 
Ea:rott ed fund. 496,704) 496,700 • 

Due to oilier funds 20.278 2.378.019 1,398,297 2.398.297 

llitearned revenue 1.518,263 311.083 1.829.346 766,320 

Total Liabilities 2,446,017 20,431 3.070,012 5,536.460 4,227.902 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

32335 5.996 38,331 53.306 ('aavailable properly taws receivable 

Total Deferred Inflosts of Resources 32,335 5,996 38,1331 53,306 

Fund Balances 
Nompendable: 

Prepaids 19,941 19,941 20.754,18) 

Restricted for: 

Cap la! iniprotment,  

sert 646.075 

7.021.861 7.021.861 

646.075 

10.580,461 

541.370 

l:naksittned ‘1.55,885 4.585.888 3,037,176 

Total Fund Balances 4,605,829 646.075 7,021,861 12,273,765 14,479,793 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, and Fund Balances $ 	7,084,181 $ 	672,502 $ 	10.091,873 $ 	17,848.556 $ 	18,761,001 
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CITV OF CELINA, TEXAS 
Comparative Statentents of Revenues. Espenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
Years Ending Septeniber 30, 2015 and 2014 

REVENUES: 

General 

Fund 

Debt 

Service 
Fund 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Total 

Governmental Funds 
2015 	 2014 

Ad xalorern LUCA 5 	2,537,123 5 	1217,693 $ 	3.754,515 $ 	3,314,591 
handii t:,  taxes 364.763 364,763 320.505 
Sales tax 603.949 6113.949 505.221 
Permits and inspection teee 1.767,856 1,767,556 1,121,5 in 
Component unit contributions 121t,000 200,1100 320.0011 170.000 

Development tees 924,249 924.249 239.739 
Fire departinent and INS fccs 241,0115 241.1815 196,753 

Fines 254,370 254,370 155,952 

Special events and donations 22i .646 221695 305,430 
Park fees 602,626 502.626 169.1100 
Other Moons', 92,349 02.349 296,867 

Interest 40.609 4.851i 66.434 111,901 911,424 
Federal, state and local grants 314,114 205,557 519,70i 2.4114,255 

Total Reit:Imes 8,084,7119 1,422,551 272,021 9,779,281 9,4911,560 

EXPENDITURES: 

Administration 1,133,574 1,133,574 1.105.855 
Judicial 114,853 54,853 55,531 
Fire and emergency services 1.316,275 1.316.275 1,083,464 
Dexelopment semen 524,712 524.712 702,562 
Public i,srka 806,788 5116.755 505.659 
Police demo-mum 1.046.160 1,1146,1611 7711,254 
Parks and Recreation 667,908 667,905 441.625 
Library 140,557 140,857 135,315 
Main street project 7(1,510 70,510 26.869 
Capital outlay 1,122,728 4,130,623 5.251,3S I 1,421925 
Debt Service: 

Principal retirement 678,366 678.366 5I0A45 
Interest and fiscal charges 669,450 569,450 510,693 
Flond issuance costs 72.325 
Total Expenditures 6,914.365 1,347,846 4,130,623 12,392,834 7,478,833 

Excess (Deficiency) of Res emotes Over Expenditures 1,170,344 74,705 (3,858,602) (2,613,553) 2,011,727 

OTHER FINANCING 51)URCES(DSES): 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 12,525 12.525 15,279 
Proceeds /non issuance of hoods 3.257.455 
Operating transfers sn 1 mitt 365.0011 30.0110 395.000 348.050 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 377,525 30.10111 407..525 3,620.814 

Net change in fund balances 1,547.869 104,705 (3.858.602) (2,206.028) 5,632,54 I 

Fund balance, October I 3,057,960 541,370 10,880,463 14,479,793 8,847,252 
Fund halanee, Srplemher 311 S 	4,605.829 $ 	646.075 5 7,021,861 $ 	12,273.765 14,479,793 
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CITY OF CEI,INA, TEXAS 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
September 30, 2015 and 2014 

Assets 

2015 
Enterprise Fund 

2014 
Enterprise Fund 

Water & Sewer 
A ctiritit* 

Water & Sewer 
Activities 

Cash and cash equivalents S 	3.939.490 S943.305 
Investment in TexPoot 3,174 1,17).113 
ln ll,q111,41IL it) TexPool, restricted for capital projects 835,000 663.573 
Accoonts t t.coivable, net 1,M1,972 692.394 
Due from other funds 2,398.297 2,398,297 

Total current assets 8,264,933 5,869,492 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Net pension asset 61.113 

Capital Assets: 
Nott-depreciable land 304.115 154,115 
Non-depreciable construction in progress 1.677,529 
Depreciable capital assets. net  17.749.627 16.749,564 

Capital Assets, net 19,731,271 16,903,679 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred outflows - related to pensions 21,771 

Total deferred outflows of resources 21,771 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resource.% 28,079,088 $ 	22,773,171 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 426.318 4)4,352 
Accrued expenses 26,384 65325 
Bonds payable - current 848,875 808.1162 
Infrastructure ads :me from CISD - current 108.089 9 I A39 
lenses payable - current 27,253 
Accrued interest payable 51362 63,568 
Meter deposits payable 305.922 242.632 
1:neatihNI revenue 1,288.779 537.986 
Escrow deposits 762,500 
Due to other funds 400.000 40(J,000 

Total current liabilities 4,245,882 2,624,564 

Infrastructure ildvance from CISD - loag-torm 296,465 411.117 
Leases payable 	long-term 18304 
Bonds payable - long-term 9,822.237 9.0.14.081 

Total non-current liabilities 10,137,41)6 9,455,198 

Total liabilities 14,383,288 12,079,762 

Net Position 
Net investonn in capital assets 11.575.656 9.589,572 
Restricted for capital protects. net  of related debt 

($2.966.008 each. 2015,1 ($3.041.392 each. 2014) 
Unrestricted 2,120.144 1.103,837 

Total Net Position 13,695,800 10,693,409 

ltl 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
Cornparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 

Operating Revenues: 
2015 2014 

Water sales $ 	3,489,083 $ 	2,780,983 
Sewer sales 1,409,070 1,160,403 
Garbage fees 405,433 402,514 
Penalties 73,654 58,682 
Tap and reconnect fees 832,360 633,765 
hnpact fees 1,113,065 977,688 
Other revenues 195,666 140,276 

Total Operating Revenues 7,518,331 6,154,311 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 545,287 373,648 
Garbage fees 354,733 368,754 
Materials and supplies 260,113 104,757 
Postage 29,282 30,120 
Repairs and facility maintenance 182,113 177,015 
General insurance 14,402 11,914 
Utilities and telephone 254,778 252,189 
Water purchases and related fees 1,606,698 1,344,283 
Depreciation & amortization 598,135 456,509 
Other expense 79,333 28,040 

Total Operating Expenses 3,924,874 3,147,229 
Operating Income S 	3,593,457 $ 	3,007,082 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
2015 2014 

Interest income 39.470 S 	10.153 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 1,550 
Interest and fiscal charges (319,811) (297,267) 
Bond issuance Costs (40,124) (52,286) 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (320,465) (337,850) 

Income before contributions and transfers 3,272,992 2,669,232 

Capital contribution 45,289 
Transfers out to other funds (395,000) (348,050) 

Change in net position 2,923,281 2,321,182 

Net position, October 1 10,693,409 8,372,227 
Prior period adjustment 79,110 
Net position, September 30 S 	13,695,800 S 	10,693,409 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

SIATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30. 2015 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment iu Texpool 

Property 1:INCS receivable, net 
Sales taxes receivable 

Primary Government 
Component 

Units 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

6,773,068 

2,.375 

31,479 
105,443 

5 	3,)39,496 
3.174 

10,712.558 

5,549 
31,479 

105.443 

Š 	23,573 

105,442 

Accounts receivable, net 30,587 1,088.972 1.119,559 

Other receivables 379,994 379,994 

Due limn component units 38,916 38,916 

Prepaid items 19,941 19,941 

Intel nal balances (1,998.2971 1,998.297 

Net newton ;met 433,330 61.113 494.443 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and &mill equis alms 10,091.873 10,091,873 

Property =in feeeivable. net  5.996 5,996 

Investment tti Texpool restricted for capital projects 815,000 835,000 

Capital assets: 

Land 2,295,651 304.115 2,599,766 
Constructkm in progress 1,227,615 1.677,529 2,905,144 
Capital assets, net 22,668,522 17.749,627 40,413,149 

Deferred outflows of resources: 

Deferred outflows • related to pensions 154,369 21,771 I 76,140 

Total Assets and deferred outflows of resources 42,260,862 27.679,088 69,939,950 529.01.5 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 712,149 426.318 1,138,467 
Accrued expenses 284,196 76,184 310,580 
Unearned revenue 1.829.346 1,288,779 3,118,125 
Meter deposits payable 305,922 305,922 
hserow deposits 496,700 762,500 1.259200 
Due to primary government 38.916 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Accnied interest 61399 51,767 113,561 
Long-term liabilities; 

Due width* nne year: 

Bonds payable 751,125 848,875 1.600,000 
Capital leases 27,253 27,253 
Intiastruetute advance from C1SD I 08.059 108,089 

Due in more than one year; 

Bands payable 18,431,212 9.822.237 28233,449 
Capital leases 18,704 18.704 
Infrastructure advance from C1SD 296,465 296,465 

Total LiubIlities 22,566,527 13,983,288 36,549,815 38,916 

Net Position 
Net invesuilen1 in capital assets 8,693,312 11,575,656 20,268,968 
Restricted lbr debt service 646,075 646,075 
Restricted tor capital projects (55.712,830) net 

of related debt (51,653,8611 4,028,969 4.028.969 
Resbictril fur capital projects 152,960,0081 net 

of relined debt (52,966,008) 

thnestrieted 6,325,979 2,120.144 8,446,123 490.094 

Total Net Position 19,694,335 13,695,800 $ 	33,390,135 $ 	490,099 

Tre warnparwg notes are en integrii,  part ce the,e tneincla walemeits 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Vear Ended September 30. 2015 

Functions/Programs 

Prt/ram Revenues 
Net (Expense) Revenue 

and Changes in Net Position 

Aggregate 

Component 

()nits 

Charges 	Operating 
For 	Grants and 

Expenses 	Services 	Contributions 

Capital 

Grants and 

Contributions 
Go crnmental 

Activities 

Business-type 

Activities 

Total 

Primary 

Government 

Governmental activities: 

Adnunistration $ 	1,170,613 	5 	 S 	 - S $ 	0,170,613) (1,170,613) 5 
Judicial 84,853 (84,853) (84,853) 
Fire and emergency services 1453,477 	188,164 	 12,950 (1,252.1(3) (1,252,163) 
Development sell tees 529,067 	924.249 395,182 395,182 

ul1icNvorks 824,527 	1.767,856 205.237 1.148,566 1,148.566 
Police department 1.114,266 	272,198 	 1,165 (845),903) (840,903) 
Parks and recreation 886 IV 	602,626 420.0(10 136,414 136,414 
Library t40,104 (140,1041 (140,104) 
Infrastructure 198,868 (198,868) (198.868) 
Main street project 70,510 (70.5101 (70.510) 
liconomie development 017,5 3 3) 
Interest and fiscal charges 635,090 	 200.000 (415,090) (435.090) 
Total governmental aclis Bits 7,1 07,587 	3,755,293 	214,115 625.237 (2,512,942) (2.512,942) (517,533 ) 

Business-type actis hies: 

Water and sewer services 4.284,809 	7.518.331 45,289 3.27K811 3,278,81 I 
Total business-type atithities 4,284,809 	7.518,331 45,289 3,278,811 3,278,811 

Total all activities $ 	11,392,396 	S 	11,273,624 	214,115 5 670,526 $ 	(2,512,942) $ 	3,278,811 $ 	765,869 (517.533) 

General revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes 3.739,841 3.739.841 
Sales taxes 603,949 603,949 601.790 
FranelUse taxes 164,763 364.763 
Spocial events and fundraising 221,69(, 221,696 
Miscellaneous income and contributions 105.223 105.223 934 
Unrestricted investment earnings 111.001 39,470 151,371 3,694 
Transfers 395,000 (395,000) 

Total general revenues and transfers 5.542373 (355,530) 5,1116,843 606,418 

Change in net position 3,029.431 2,923,281 5,952.712 88,885 

Net Position-beginning of y ear 16,103,963 10,693.409 26,797372 4511.214 
Prior period adjustment 560,911 79.110 640,051 
Net Position-end of year S 	19,694335 S 	13,695,800 5 	33.390,135 S 	-190,099 

The uccornpniying notes nrc an intcgrai part of these finamjal Anremcnis 
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CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS 

BALANCE SIIEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FENDS 

September 30, 2015 

Assets 

General 

Debt 

Steelier 

Capital 

Projects 

Cush and cash equivalents $ 6,11)6562 $ 	es66 $an S 

Investment in Tespnol 2.375 

Cash and east; equivalents 	login:tad 10,091,873 

Sales tuxes teseivable 105,443 

Props t ty taw., teseivable. net  32335 C.9911 

GI.Ilit receivable 300.0481 

VMS leeersAle. net  30,587 

011ie) r.;:eivahles 48.622 

Prepaid items 19,941 

Due from other lunch 41)0,000 

title from entsmotient unate 8,916 

Tested Assets 5 7,084,1 	1 S 	1)72,502 S 	10,091.873 

I falling ice 
Aecnunis payable 331.239 380.910 

Am tied salat ies and benefits 99,815 I 53 

Eserowed funds 496,700 

bue to tither fUnch 11l,27N 73711,0 19 

Unearned t t,Wert tie 1,518,263 311,083 

Total ilablililes 2.446.017 20,431 3,070,012 

Deferred Inflons 	Resnuress 

32.335 5,996 1:flavailable pritperty taxes reeds able 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,335 5,996 

Fond Balaners 

Nunspcndable: 

Prepaid:, 19,941 

Resit htesi 

Capital Projesits 7.021.661 

Debt Secs ice 646,075 

lltass Tried 4.565.688 

Total Fond Balances 4,6115,829 646,07S 7.021.861 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 

and Fund Balances S 	7.084,181 S 	672.502 S 	10,091,873 

Tntal 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 	6,773,4166 

2,375 

I 0,1191,873 

105.443 

38.331 

300,018i 

30.5)17 

48.022 

19.941 

448000 

38,916 

S 17,848.556 

7 12.149 
99.968 

496.700 

2,39s..297  

1,829346 

5,536.460 

3031 

38331 

19,941 

7.021 .1461 

646.1175 

4.585,868 

12.273,765 

S 17.8.18,556 

t,oernmcntiil fund balances as presented abuse: 	 12,273,765 

Amounts presented for governmental activities in the statement of 

net position are dilTerent because: 

Capital assets al:potted in the statement of net position 

ate not financial resources and are not reported in the fund balance sheet 	 26,191.788 

tither lonp-teren insects (receivables) are mit available to pay en/Tent-period 

expendiatteS told thetefoic arc defaced its the funds, These include defeated 

property Isms, of 518331 and fines receivable nf $31,116. 	 69,441 

blet pension assida (5433.33(t) and the related deferred outflows of resources 15154,3114) 

ate not atil.jlic to pay ettneni‘pet ind expenditures and therefore ate not 

recorded to the Ulnas 	 587,699 

Interest due on long-lenn debt ts accorded as seemed mleles1payaKe 

in the statement tit net pnottion but dries not hccome a liability on the 

amid sutements until the date liar. 

ong-ternt liahilitirs ate a eported an the statomeit of net 

posniou hut the, are not due and payab:e in the current period 

dnd therefore die not tenoned its liabilities in the fund balance shea. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

tril,7991 

t 9,366,565) 

S 19.694,335 

  

The accenaparr p Mitt ato trIere pad of al est ream& StaleveMIS 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditums, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

ReVenUes: 

General 

Fund 

Debt 
Sersice 

Fund 

Capital 

Projects 

Fund 

Total 

(3overnmental 

Funds 

.1s1 valorem mares S 	2,537,123 S 	1,217,693 S 5 	3,754,516 
Franchise taxes 364,763 364,763 
Salo tax 603,949 603,949 
Pelmits and inspection fees 1.767,556 1,767,556 
Component unit contributions 120.000 200,000 320,000 
Dociopment fees 924,249 924.249 
Fire department and EMS rocnues 241.005 241.005 
Fines 254.370 254,370 
Special events and donations 221,06 221.696 
Park fees and donations 602,626 602,626 
Other income 92.349 92.349 
interest 40,609 4.858 66,434 111,901 
Federal. slate & local grants 314,114 205,587 519.701 

Total Revenues 8,084,709 1,422,551 272,021 9,779,281 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 1,133.574 1.133.574 
Judicial K4. 53 84,853 
Fire and cmergcnc 	services 1.316,275 1.316.275 
Doelopment services 324,712 524,712 
Public 	oaks 806,785 506,758 
Police dcpattment 1,046,160 1,046,160 
Parks and recreation 667,905 667,9(15 
Library 140,557 I40,1157 
\ lain street project 70,510 70,5111 

Capital Outlay 1,122,725 4,130,623 5,253,351 
Debt Service: 

Principal 678,366 675,366 
Inteiest and fiscal charscs 664,450 669.450 

Total Expenditures ti,914,365 1,347.846 4,130,623 12392,K3$ 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,170,344 74,7(15 (3,858,602) (2,613,553) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds from sale °lassos 12,525 12,525 
( /perating transfers in (out) 365,000 30,000 395,000 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 377,525 30,000 407.525 

Net change in fund balances 1,547,869 104,705 (3,858,602) (2,206,028) 

Fund balance, October 1 3.057,960 541,370 10,880,463 14,479,793 

Fund balance, September 30 4,605,829 646,075 $ 	7,021,861 S 	12,273,765 

Tite accernpanying notes are an integra µart el these 6nalcoal siMomatils 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
Reconcilation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 	 $ (2,206,028) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 

are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, while in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is 
the amount by which capital outlay of S5.253.35! exceeded 
depreciation expense of St673,757). 

In the statement of actvities, the gain on the disposal of assets is reported, 

hut in the governmental funds. proceeds from the sale increase current 
financial resources. The change in net position differs from the change in 
fund balance by the net book value of the assets disposed. 

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt provide current financial 
resources to governmental funds. but issuing debt increases long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is 
an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount of 
debt retired for the year $678.366. less new bonds issued (5-0-), 

Changes in the liabilities for compensated absences do not require the use 
of current resources and therefore are not revorded in the fluids. 

Changes in lone term amounts for net pension assets ($69,559) and the 
related deferred inflows of resources related to pensinns $96,317 
are not recorded in the funds. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This includes 
the change in deferred inflows from ad valorem taxes of ($14,975) and 
the change in fines receivable $17,828 and EMS receivables $(52,641). 

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. These include the amortization of bond premiums. 
$23,173: and the decrease in accrued interest on debt 511,217. 

4.579.59-1- 

678.366 

(33,861) 

26,758 

(49,788) 

34.390 

Change in net position - governinental :Joh hies 	 $ 3,029,431  

The accornpanying notes are art integral part of these financial statements. 
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tit YOF CHI \ 	IXAS 
STATEMENT OF 1.lJND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
SEPTENIBER 311. 2015 

 

Enterprise Fund  
Water & Sewer 

Activities 
A.ss c 

  

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment i n cx Pool 
investment in TexPoo1 restricted fut capital protects 
Accounts roxivable. net  
Due rimi otho run& 

Total current assets 

3.939A90 
3.174 

835.000 
1.088,972 
2.398,297 

 

8,264,933 

 

   

Noncurrent Msch: 
Net pension asset 	 61.113 

Capital Assets: 
Non-depre,:i,thIc land 
Non-depreciable construction in progress 
Depreciable capital assem nei 

Capital ,%ssets, net 

304,115 
1,677,529 

17.749,627 
19,731,271 

Deferred Outflow s of moo rees: 
Deferred outflows - related to pensions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

 

21,771 
21,771 

  

Total insets and deferred outflows of resou fres 	 28,079,088 

Accounts pal.able 	 426,318 
AI:crucd Nalareq and h.:nefits 	 26.384 
Bonds payable current 	 848,875 
Infrastracture 341% awe from C1SD current 	 108,089 
Leases payable current 
	

17.253 
Accrued inte!e‘i 
	

51.762 
Mem deposit,. payable 	 305.922 
Unearned revenue 	 1.288.779 
Eserov, deposits 	 762,500 
Due to other Rinds 	 400,000 

Total current líahilitìcs 
	

4,245,882 

Infrastructure advance horn CISn longterm 	 296.465 
Leascs payable long-term 	 18,704 
Bonds payable long-icrm 	 9,822,237 

Total non-current liabilities 
	

10,137,406 

Total liabilities 	 14,383,288 

Net Position 
Net invcAment ;a capital assets 	 11.575.656 
Restricted Ito capital pro:ects IS2.906.1.1fitt 1. net  ot related debt 1S.2.966.008) 
tinresmeted 	 2.120.144  

'1 otal VI Position 	 S 	13,695,800 

1",ie accompanying notes roe an iNcurall.lw. td  mese financial statements 
28 	 1421 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



City of Celina, Texas 
Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Fund Nei Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Year Ended Septeniber 30, 2015 

Operating revenues: 

Enterprise Fund 
Water & Sewer 

Activities 

Water sales 5 3,489,083 
Sewer sales 1,409,070 
larbage fees 405A33 

Penalties 73,654 
Tap and reconnect fees 832,360 
Impact fees 1.113,065 
Other revenues 195,666 

Total Operating Revenues 7 ,518,331 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 545,287 
Garbage feis 354,733 
Materials and supplies 260,113 
Postage 29,282 
Repairs and facility maintenance 182,113 
General insurance 14,402 
Utilities and telephone 254,778 
Water purchases and related fees 1.606.698 
Depreciation & amortization 598,135 
Other expense 79,333 

Total Operating Expenses 3,924,874 

Operating Income S 	3,593.457 

Non-operating revenues (expenses); 
lob:rest income 39,470 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Interest and fiscal charges (319,811) 
Bond issuance costs (40,124) 

Total non-operaling revenues (expenses) (320,465) 

income (loss) before contributions and transfers 3,272,992 

Capital contribution 45,289 
Operaling Transfers in (out) (395,000) 

Change in net positiim 2,923,281 

Net position, October 1 10,693,409 
Prior period adjustment 79,110 
Net position. September 30 S 	13,695,800 

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF CELINA. 'EEXAS 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Enterprise Fund 

Water & Sewer 

Activities 

Cash received from customers and users 7.872,54ti 

Cash paid to suppliers (2369,486) 

Cash paid to employees (588,402) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 4.514.658 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

Change in customer deposits 0,200 

Operatinc transfers (to) from other funds 095,000) 

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital Tinancing activities (331.710) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition of capital assets (3,425,728) 

Capital contributions 45,289 

Change in escrow deposits 762,500 

Bond proceeds 1.645,000 

Bond issuance costs (40,124) 

Principal payments - bonds payable (808,862) 

Principal payments - other obligations (98.0(Ì2) 

Capital lease proceeds 56,833 

Principal payments - capital leases (10,870 

'Interest paid on bonds payable and other long-term ob1igntiizs  (3-49,585) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 

related financing activities (2.223,555) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Net redemptions (purchases) of investments 997,322 

Investment income 39,470 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,036,792 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2.996,185 

Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 943.305 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 S 	3,939,490 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiat statements, 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

Statement of Cash Flow; 

Proprietary Fond 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Reconciliation of Nei Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) 

by Operating Activities 

Enterprise Fond 
Water Sz Sewer 

Activities 

Operating itimme 3,593,457 

Adjusttnents to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) 

by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 59X.135 

increase) decrease in accounts reeei able (net) (396.57X) 

(Increase) decrease in nct pension asset 9,X10 

(increase) decrease in deferred outflows or resources (13.5K4) 
Increase (d:crease) in accounts payable 11.966 

Increase (ds:crease) in accnied expensi.s (39,341) 

Increase (d2crease) in unearned revenues 750.793 

Thtal Adjustments )21.2o1 

Net cash provided by operating activities .1,51.1,658 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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City of Celina, Texas 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2015 

1. 	Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the City of Celina, Texas and its component units, Celina Economic 
Development Corporation and Celina Community Development Corporation, collectively 
identified as the City have been prepared in conforrnity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and 
practices of the City are discussed in subsequent sections of this note. The remaining notes are 
organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City's financial 
activities for the fiscal year ending Septernber 30, 2015. 

(A) 	Reporting Entity and Related Organizations 

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected rnayor and six member City Council. 
The City provides general administration, public works, police and judicial, and fire and 
emergency services to its residents. The Council hires a City tvlanager for day to day operations. 

The City Council has the authority to make decisions, appoint adtninistrators and managers, 
significantly influence operations; and has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. 'the 
City is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. 

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in 
the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statements No. 14 and 39 
as amended by GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an amendment 
of GAO Statements No. 14 and No. 34. These statements define the reporting entity as the 
pritnary government and those component units for which the primary government is financially 
accountable. In addition, component units may be included in the reporting entity based on the 
nature and significance of the relationship with the primary government, or based on being 
closely related or financially integrated with the prirnary governrnent. Based on these criteria, 
the City has the following cornponent units at September 30, 2015: 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Celina Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) - CEDC serves all citizens of the 
government and is governed by a board appointed by the City Council. The City Council may 
remove the CEDC board for cause. CEDC is a nonprofit emporation governed by Section 4A of 
the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 and organized for the public purpose of aiding, 
promoting and furthering economic development within the City of Celina, Texas. 
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l. 	Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

Celina Community Development Corporation (CCDC) - CCDC serves all citizens of the 
government and is governed by a board appointed by the City Council. The City Council may 
remove the CCDC board for cause. CCDC is a nonprofit corporation governed by Section 413 of 
the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 and organized for the public purpose of the 
promotion and development of industrial and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage 
employment and the public welfare of the City of Celina, Texas. 

Neither CEDC nor CCDC prepare separate financial statements. 

(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide.financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding 
fiduciary activities. The primary govermnent and component units are presented separately within 
the financial statements with the focus on the primary government. Individual funds are not 
displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and 
City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with 
fees charged to external customers. 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues 
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and 
may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and 
prograrn revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: t I ) 
charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the City's 
services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including 
restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, 
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers. These revenues are 
subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources 
not properly inchided with program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Fund frlancial statements 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and proprietary funds are reported in separate columns with composite 
columns for non-major funds. 

(C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 
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Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement jOcus 
and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of 
internal activity (between or within funds). Proprietary fund financial statements and financial 
statements of City component units also report using this same measurement focus and basis of 
accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the 
related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied 
while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement fOcus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the 
related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond and capital lease principal and 
interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due. 

Major revenues sources susceptible to amnial include: sales and use taxes, property taxes, 
franchise taxes, grant revenues, and investment income. in general, other revenues are recognized 
when cash is received. 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses 
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for the 
proprietary fund are charges to customers for water and sewer sales or services. Principal operating 
expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and 
depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the 
financial statements. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed, 

(D) 	Fund Types and Major Funds 

Goverinnental Fimds 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fwid - reports as the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to 
account for all financial resources not reported in other funds. 

Debt Service Fund - accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of 
principal and interest on the Citys general obligation debt. The City annually levies ad 
valorem taxes restricted for the retirement of general obligation bonds, capital leases, and 
interest. This fund reports all such ad valorem taxes collected. 

Capital Projects Fund — accounts for the financing and acquisition of rnajor capital projects. 
Fund resources are provided primarily through bond sales and interest earnings. 

34 

1427 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



1. 	Introduction and Sumtnary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

Propriekny Funds 

The City reports the following major Proprietary fund: 

Water and Sewer Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the Citys water and 
sewer utilities services. 

(E) 	Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

Cash and Investments 

The City maintains cash and investment pools which are shared by the various governmental funds, 
In addition, non-pooled cash and investments are separately held and reflected in the respective 
individual funds. These pooled and non-pooled cash and investment pools are displayed on its 
respective balance sheet as 'cash and cash equivalents" and "investment in TexPool." 

Investments are reported at fair value determined as follows. Short-tertn, highly liquid investments 
are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash deposits are reported at the carrying 
amount which reasonably estimates fair value. 

flank certificates of deposit are carried at cost which approximates fair value. 

The City reporting entity considers highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an 
original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventories and Prepaids 

Inventories consisting of expendable supplies held for consumption in governmental funds are 
reported using the expenditure method. Linder this method, amounts paid for these items are 
reported as expenditures when purchased. Inventories, when material, are recorded at cost stated 
on a first-in, first-out basis in the government-wide financial statements. 

Prepaid items record payments to vendors that benefit future reporting periods and are reported on 
the consumption basis at cost. Prepaid items are similarly reported in government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that apply to a future period and 
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that tinie. Deferred outflows of 
resources represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. 
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I. 	Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization 

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are 
stated at historical cost, or if historical cost is not available, they are stated at estimated historical 
cost. These assets are comprehensively reported in the govemment-wide financial statements. The 
City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Donated assets 
arc stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of 
S5.000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the 
cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the 
resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations. 

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows: 

Buildins 40 
Road infi-astructure 15 - 50 
Water & sewer infrastructure & rights 20 - 40 
Vehicles 5 
Furniture, machinery, and equipment 5 

The City has not capitalized any interest costs in the carrying value of capital assets. 

Long-term Debt, Deferred Bond Credits, and Bond Discounts/Premiutns 

in the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit Financial staternents, olustanding debt is 
reported as liabilities. Bond discounts or premiums are capitalized and amortized over the terms of 
the respective bonds using a method that approximates the straight-line method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other 
financing sources of the etnrent period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net 
Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TIVIRS) and additions toideductions from 
TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is 
reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
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1. 	Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued 

Compensated Absences 

Full-time etnployees earn vacation leave for each rnonth of work performed. Proeressive accrual 
of vacation leave is based on the number of years the individual is employed by the City. After 
completion of a probationary period of employment, accrued vacation kave is paid upon 
termination of employment. Full-time employees also earn sick leave time. Unused sick leave is 
not paid upon termination of employment. 

Cornpensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide, proprietary and component 
unit financial statements. Governmental funds report only matured compensated absenees payable 
to currently terminating ernployees. These are included in wages and benefits payable. 

Fund Equity 

The City implemented GASB Statement 54 standards for the classification of fund balances in the 
govermnental funds. The fund balances of governmental funds are defined as follows: 

Nrm-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form. such 
as inventory or prepaid items or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact, 

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints that arc 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

Onnmitted - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of 
the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City. 
Commitments my be established, modified, or rescinded only through a formal resolution of the 
City Council. 

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are 
intended to be used for specific purposes that have been established by the City Council. 

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts in the general fund. 

The City Council delegates the responsibility to assign funds to the City Manager, Director of 
Finance, or other designee as determined by the Council, 

When expenditures are incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available 
the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. Similarly, committed funds are 
considered to have been spent first when there is a choice for the use of less restricted funds, then 
assigned and then unassigned funds. 
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t. 	Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued 

(F) Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a participant 
in the Texas Municipal League (TML) Employees Health Insurance Fund, Texas Municipal 
League Workers Compensation Joint Insurance Fund (WC Fund) and the Texas Municipal League 
Joint Self-Insurance Fund (Property-Liability Fund), a public entity risk pool operated by the Texas 
Municipal League Board for the benefit of individual governmental units located within Texas. 
The agreement provides that the trust established by TML will be self-sustaining through member 
premiums. The City pays annual premiums to TML for worker's compensation, general and auto 
liability, property.  damage. employee dishonesty, public officials liability, and law enforcement 
professional liability coverage. The City does not anticipate any material additional insurance cost 
assessments as a result of participation in this risk rnanagement pool. There were no reductions in 
insurance coverage from the prior year. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during 
any or the past three fiscal years. 

(G) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures, Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

2. 	Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

F3udgetary Information 

The City Manager subrnits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the city charter. The budget is presented to the City Council for review, budget 
workshops are held with the various City department officials. and public hearings are held to 
address priorities and the alloeation of resources. Generally in August, the City Council adopts the 
annual fiscal year budgets for all City operating funds. Once approved, the City Council may 
amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated 
revenues and appropriations. 

Each fund's approved budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by 
source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and class as follows: personnel services and 
related fringe benefits, supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay, transfers, and debt 
service. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the department level. Within this contiol 
level, management rnay transfer appropriations between line items. Budget revisions and line item 
transfers are subject to final review by the City C'ouncil. Revisions to the budget were made 
throughout the year. 

The budgets for the operating funds are prepared on the cash and expenditure basis. Revenues are 
budgeted in the year receipt is expected; and expenditures. which do not include encumbrances, are 
budgeted in the year that the liability is to be incurred. The Debt Service Fund budget is prepared 
to provide funding for general obligation debt service when liabilities are due for payment. The 
budget and actual required supplementary information is presented on these bases. Unexpended 
appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end. 
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3. 	Deposits and Investments 

Custodial credit risk for deposits niiìc r isk that rri the Ocnt of a bank failure. the City's deposits 
may not be rewired or the (ity It ill not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of 
an outside party. The City's policy tenunes deposits to be fully secured by collateral valued at 
market or par, whichever is loWer, less the amount (f Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(1'1)1C) insurance, Deposited funds mny be, invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an 
established record of fiscal health. Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit of 
funds. The City ( `ouncil approves authorized depository institutions based on the recommendations 
of` ty management. 

Deposits of City of Celina, Tesas (primary got•ernment) and its component units, CEDC and 
CCDC, arc fully insured or collateralized v, ith securities held by the City or component unit, its 
agent. or b) the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the name of the City or 
component unii. respectively, 

1 n vestments 

During the year ended Septembei 30. .2015 the Cit, Invested only in Texas Local Government 
Investment Pool ("TexPool"), TexPool r a puHic funds investment pool overseen by the Texas 
State Comptroller of Public Accounts acting hy and through its full service provider. Federated 
Investors is empowered to invest funds and act as custodian of investments purchased with local 
investment funds. Authorized investments of TesPool include obligations of the United States of 
America or its agencies, direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, certificates of 
deposit and repurchase agreements. At September 30. 2015. the carrying amowit and fair value of 
the City's int estmcnt in TexPool v, as Sx-10.5-10. lexPool is rated for credit risk as AAArn and 
maintained a weighted average days to maturity of -10 days at September 30, 2015. 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other eininterparty to an investment will not fidfill its 
oblinations Generally. the City's investing activities are managed under the custody of the 
"Freasurer tin his absence the Cit.  \Ianagert. int estingis11er-formed in accordance with investment 
policies adopted by the City Council in complianes: %AIM the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), 
Cir:, int estment policy and the PFIA generall permit the City to invest in FDIC insured or fully 
collateialized certificates of deposit. fully collateralized repurchase agreements, public funds 
investment pools. obligations of tlw Ilnited Stales or lmeriea or its agencies, direct obligations of 
the State of Texas, and oblinations of agent ies. %.s.iunties, cities and other political subdivisions of 
Texas having been rated as 10 imestinent quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm 
and having icceiNed a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent, During the year ended 
September 30. 2(115, Mc (*ity did not own any types or seenr'fies other than those permitted by the 
City investment policy or the Public 1 unds Investment Act 
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3. Deposits and Investments — continued 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest 
rate changes. City policy generally requires investment maturities to correspond to anticipated cash 
flow needs. City policy further states that volatile investment instruments shall be avoided and that 
nonmarketable instruments with maturities beyond one month shall not exceed 30 percent of the 
portfolio. In addition, investrnent maturities shall not exceed the following limits: 

Operating funds - 30 days 
Capital project funds - corresponding draw schedules 
Debt service funds - corresponding payrnent dates, not to exceed (6) six months 
Bond reserve funds - (5) five years 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude or the City's investment 
in a single issuer. City policy requires that the risk or principal loss in the portfolio as a whole shall 
be minimized by diversifyina investment types to eliminate the risk of loss from over-concentration 
of assets in a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities. 

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the 
possession of an outside party. The Citys policy on safekeeping and custody requires that 
investments shall be secured through safekeeping agreements. All investment funds shall be placed 
directly with qualified financial institutions selected through the City's banking procurement 
process. All transactions shall be executed on a delivery versus payment basis. 

4. Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts, and Unearned Revenue 

Prt)prielaty Fund Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts and Unearned Revenue 

Significant receivables include amounts due front customers prinutrily for utility services. These 
receivables are due within one year. The Proprietary Fund reports accounts receivable net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectible amounts. The allowance 
amount is estimated using accounts receivable past due more than 60 to 90 days. Following is the 
detail of the Proprietary Fund receivables and the related allowance for uncollectible accounts: 

Accounts receivable, gross $1,105,409 
Less: allowance for uncollectiblc accounts 16,437) 
Net accounts receivable 51 08,8_9_7/ 

The City has recorded unearned revenue of $1,288379 water and sewer impact fees and sewer 
capacity fees that have been collected, but are awaiting expenditure for the designated purpose. 

Property Taxes Receivable, Unearned Revenues, and the Property Tax calendar 

The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 
1 for all real property located within the City. Appraised values are established by the Collin 
County Central Appraisal District at 100% of market value. As ofjanuary 1. 2014, all real property 
was assessed at a net taxable value of $550,278,293. 
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4, 	Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts, anti Unearned Revenue - continued 

The property tax rate for the year ended September 30, 2015 was .645 per S 00 or the assessed 
valuation on taxable property. Following is a summary or the overall tax rate as levied by fund: 

Maintenance and operations-General Fund 	 .4327 
Debt Service Fund 	 .2 1 23 
Total tax rate  

In the governmental fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as receivables in each of 
the respective funds on the tax levy date with appropriate allowances for estimated uncollectible 
amounts. At fiscal year-end, property tax receivables represent delinquent taxes. If delinquent 
taxes are not paid within 60 days of year-end, they are recorded as deferred inflows of resources. 

In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include 
all amounts due the City with a 10% allowance for estimated =collectible amounts regardless of 
when cash is received. Over time substantially all propeny taxes are collected. 

The City's full year property tax calendar is as follows: 

October 1-Full year tax levy assessed for the current fiscal year-taxes arc due and payable. 
January 1-Tax lien is attached to property to secure the payment of taxes, and penalty anti 

interest as applicable. 
February 1-Penalty and interest charges begin to accrue on unpaid past due taxes. 
July 1-Taxes become delinquent and are subject to attorney fees incurred for collection. 

Allo n auce fur Uncollectible Taves 

The City records an allowance for =collectible property taxes in order to estimate the amount of 
taxes that will ultimately prove to be =collectible. Manatzement has determined that an allowance 
in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the property taxes receivable in each of the applicable fund 
types should be adequate to provide for =collectible property taxes. No provisions are made for 
=collectible sales tax receivables, or grants receivable as management estimates that these amounts 
will be (Idly collectible. 

Fines and Court Costs Receivable and Related Allowances 

in the governmental fund financial statements, fines and court costs are recognized as revenue au 
the cash basis, 

ln the government-wide financial statements, the City records fines and court costs receivable nct of 
amounts estimated to bc =collectible and net of any amounts that would be clue to other 
governmental entities as a result of collection. Management has determined the estimate of 
=collectible fines and court costs through an analysis of actual amounts collected subsequent to 
year end. Amounts due to other governmental entities have been determined based on distribution 
requirements of the State of Texas. 
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4. Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts, and Unearned Revenue - continued 

Grants Receivabk 

Grants receivable were collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. accordingly, no 
allowance for uncollectible amounts has been recorded. These amounts are recorded sirnilarly in 
both the governmental fund statements and the government-wide financial statements. Grant 
revenues are recorded as earned when eligibility requirements are met. Grant revenues received 
prior to meeting grant eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. 

5. Capital Assets 

The following table provides a summary of changes in capital assets, including assets recorded 
under capital leases: 

Cove mine nt al Activities : 

Nondepreciable capital assets: 

Increases Decreases Indirig 

Latal $ 	2,295,651 S 	2295.651 

Construction in progress 815,596 1.114,286 702,267 1,227,615 

Total nondepreciable capital assets 2,997,917 1.114.286 702,267 3,523,266 

Depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements 2,033,373 3,471,177 5,504,550 

Parks 9,059,669 984,737 10,044,4(16 

Road infrastructure [1,238,642 11,238,642 

Vehicles 1,131,606 305,886 1,437,492 

Furniture and equipment 1,239,659 79,512 24,283 1,294,908 

Total depreciable capital asscts 24,816,279 4,841,332 24,283 29,519,998 

Total capital assets 27,814,196 5.955.618 726,550 13,043,2M 

1.ess: accumulated depreciation 6,202,002 673.757 24,283 6,851,476 

Capital assets. net  $ 	21,612,194 5,251,861 S 	702,267 5 	26,191,788 

Rusiness-Type Activities: 

Nondc preciable capital assets: 

Land 154.114 150,001 $ 	304,115 

Construction in progress 2,904.841 1,527,392 2.754,704 1,677,529 

Total nondepreciable capital assets 3,058,955 1,677,393 2,754,704 1,981,644 

Depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements 43,769 43,769 

Water it sewer infrastructure 19,921,723 3,287,438 23,209,161 

Vehicks 183,101 91,948 273,049 

Equipment 334.011 1.123,653 1.457,664 

Total ikpreciable capital assets 20,482,604 4.503,039 24.985,641 

Total capital a bsets 23,541,559 6.180,432 2,754,704 26,967,287 

Less: accumulated depreciation 6,637,880 598,136 7.236,016 

Capital assets, net $ 	16903,679 $ 	5,552,296 2,754,704 $ 	19,73 1,27 
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5. Capital Assets - continued 

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions of the City as follows: 

Administration $ 59,480 
Fire and emergency services 123,097 
Road infrastructure 198,868 
Public works 18,936 
Parks 213,464 
Police department 59,912 

Total $§73,757  

Depreciation expense recorded in business-type activities and the Proprietary Fund was S598,136. 

The gross atnount of assets included in the equipment category above recorded under capital lease 
obligations is S30,752. Aectunulated amortization of these assets is $5,766. Amortization expense 
is included in depreciation expense. Capital lease obligations are secured by the equipment 
purchased. 

6. IA-mg-Tenn Obligations 

Long-term Obligations Supporting Governmental Activities 

Certificates of obligation bonds issued by the City are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 
These bonds are to be repaid with property taxes levied for debt service and recorded in the Debt 
Service Fund. The City's borrowing capacity is restrained by maintainina the City's debt at a 
responsible level. Other debt issued to support governmental activities are capital lease obligations 
which are primarily paid from the General Fund. 

Interest expense for governmental activities was $635,090 and is reported as a separate line item in 
the statement of activities. 

Busincss-OPpe Activities - Revenue Bonds 

Revenue bonds consist of debt issued to support activities of the Proprietary (water and sewer) Fund. 
In addition to being backed by the full faith and credit of the City. revenue bonds are secured by a 
lien on and a pledge of the surplus revenues of the water and sewer system. 

Interest expense for business-type activities and the Proprietary (water and sewer) Fund was 
$319,81 I for thc year. 

The following page contains a sumrnary of changes in bonds payable and capital lease obligations 
for the year: 
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GumrnmenInt Activiriew 

Gmeral Obligation Refunding Bondi 

Beginning Increases Deeremies Bluing 

Due in 

One War 

Series 2013, 23.5%, 2015-2027 4,315,000 S 5 	265,010 $ 	4,050,000 5 	270,000 

Tux and Waterwmks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2014, 2,0%-4,0¼. 2015-2034 3,085,000 95.000 2.990,000 140.000 

Tax and Waterwotts and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2013,10%4,0%, 2015-2033 5,325.000 35.000 5.290,000 65,000 

Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligatinn 

Series 2012 20%.4.0%, 2013-2032 3.695,000 150.000 3.5-45.000 191,000 

Tax and Waterworks and Sewet System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Senes 2011, 3.0%4.125%, 2012-2031 1,320.000 35,000 l.285,000 35.010 

Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2004, 4.625%-5,0%, 2004-2029 

aneral Obligation Refunding Bonds 

1,106,170 4.853 1,101,317 4,292 

Series 2012., 201/4.3,0%, 2013.2023 105.000 5.000 100,0011 5.0110 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

Series 2007. 4.0%-4.25`14. 2098-2021 532,607 76.285 456.322 81,833 

Capi:al Lease Obligatinns 12.228 12.228 

Total Clivemmental Activit ks S 	19,496.005 678.366 $ 	18,817,639 $ 	751,125 
111111111111111=1111•11111111111M 

Businen-iype Activities: 

Tax and Waterworks anti Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2014.A. 2.65%, 2017-2024 $ 	1,645,GOO 1,M5,060 

Tax and Waterwnrks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2014, 2.0%-4,0%, 2015-2034 2.315,0110 2315A00 5,000 

Tax and Waterwtuks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

Series 2012, 2,0%40%. 2013.2.032 665,000 30,00 635,000 30,000 

Guieral Obligation Refunding Bemis 

Series 2012, 2.0%.3.0%, 2013-2023 3.740,000 .170,1X4 3,370,o00 380,000 

Crateral Obligatior. Refunding Bonds 

Series 2007, 4.0%-4.25%, 2008-2021 1.387,391 198,715 1.,188,678 213.167 

Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation 

,Series 2007, 210)4-3.60%, 2009-2028 1,105.000 195,060 910,000 205,000 

Tax And Wateruurkc and Sewer Sytem 

Revenue Certificates of Obitgat ion 

Seties 2004, 4.625%-5.13%, 2004-2029 308,829 15,147 293,682 15,7118 

Capital Lease Obligations 45,1) 57 9 45.57 27,253 

Total Hu s in es s -type A etivit its S 	9,521.222 S 	1,4)O,95 S 	808.862 S 	10.403,317 S 	876128 
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6. 	Long-Terrn Obligations - confirmed 

The financial statement presentation for bonds payable is increased by $364,698 in governmental 
activities and by $313,752 in both business-type activities and the proprietary fund to reflect bond 
pretniutns that will be amortized over the life of the bonds. 

The City's general obligation bonds are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the City. The bond 
issues are approved by the voters and repaid with property taxes recorded in the Debt Service Fund. 
Current requirements for principal and interest of these obligations are accounted for in the Debt 
Service Fund. 

Capital lease agreements represent general obligations of the City, and are secured by the equipment 
acquired by the capital lease proceeds. Current requirements for principal and interest of capital lease 
obligations are accounted for in the appropriate fund for which the liability was incurred. 

Compensated absences are paid from the fund responsible for the employee's compensation with 
significant liabilities payable from the General Fund. 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonded debt and capital lease obligations arc as 
follows at year-end: 

Governmental Actisities  

Year eliding 

September 30 Bond principal Bond interest 

Capital lease 

principal 

Capital lease 

interest 

Total 

Re q uired 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

$ 	751,125 

767,509 

901,110 

918,333 

938,320 

$ 	644,324 

626,905 

609,032 

588,476 

565,926 

S 	1,395,449 

1,39,4,414 

1,510,142 

1,506,809 

1,504,246 

2021-2025 5,133,625 2,400,497 7,534,122 

2026-2030 5,977,617 1,407,727 7,385,344 

2031-2035 3,430,000 277,438 3,707,438 

Tot a ls S 	18,817,639 S 	7, t 20.325 S 	25,937,964 

Business-type Actisities 

Year ending Capital kase Capital lease Total 

September 30 Bond principal Bond interest plincipal interest Required 

2016 S 	848,875 $ 	352,975 27,253 1,173 $ 	1,230,276 

2017 892,490 298,791 18,704 247 1,210,232 

2018 993,891 273,747 1,267,638 

2019 1.020,667 245,901 1,272.568 

2020 1,061,680 212,686 1,274,366 

2021-2025 4,246,375 557,451 4,803,826 

2026-2030 762,382 189,354 951,736 

2031-2035 525,000 48,975 573,975 

Totals S 	10,357,360 S 	2,179,880 S 	45,957 $ 	1,420 $ 	12,584,617 
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6. 	Long-Term Obligations - continued 

In addition to the bonds and capital leases above. the City also ha& the following long-term 
obligations: 

Beginning 
Balance 

 

lnereme 
Ending 	Due Within 

Decrease 	Balance 	One Year 

        

Governmental Activities: 
Compensated absences 	S 150,367 

	
$ 1S4,228 	S 150,7167 

	
S 184,228 	$ 184,228 

It is anticipated that the liability for compensated absences described above will be paid from the 
General Fund when due. 

Beginning 
Balance 

 

lnerease 
Ending 	Due Within 

Decrease 	Ba:ance 	, One Year 

   

Business4ype Activities: 
Obligation due io 

(.elina IS1) 
	

S 502.556 	S 
	

S 98,002 	$ 4r.).1,554 	$ 1014.089 

The obligation due to Celina ISD is a result of the school district funding the cost for the installation 
of a new water line that provides service to school facilities. The obligation is non-interest bearing 
however, the City has discounted the debt to estimated present value using the assumption of a 5.5% 
annual interest rate. The agreement with Celina ISD is that the City will not bill the school for 
water use until such time as the cumulative billings are equal to the cost of installing the water line. 
At the current rate of water use by Celina ISD, City management estimates approximately $126,000 
of gross billings for annual water use will be credited to this obligation over each of the next four 
years, 

Special Assessment Revenue Bonds 

In 2014, the City issued Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 (Creeks of Legacy Public 
Improvement District Phase #1 Project) in the amount of S8,750.000 and Special Assessment 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 (Creeks of Legacy Public Improvement District Phases #2-3 Major 
Improvement Project) in the amount of $6.575,000. Total bond principal outstanding for these two 
issues is S15,325,000 at year-end. 

Proceeds of the bonds were deposited into trust accounts with U.S. Bank N.A. (U.S. Bank) ibr the 
purpose or funding improvements in the projects described above. U.S. Bank serves as trustee, for 
the benefit cif the bond holders, for these funds as well as any and all other property or money of 
every name and nature, which is, from time to time hereafter by delivery or in writing of any kind, 
conveyed. pledged, assigned or transferred to the trustee. 

The City is not obligated in any manner for this special assessment debt, but merely acts as the 
properly owner's agent in handling the debt service transactions by collecting any special assessment 
tax collections and forwarding them to the bondholders. These collections have not yet begun, 
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7. 	Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

Plan Description 

The City of Celina. Texas participates as one of SAO plans in the nontraditional. joint contributory. 
hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered hy the Texas fYlunicipal Retirement System 
(TMRSt. TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the 
TMRS Act. Subtitle G, Title 8. Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-
employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TN/IRS Act places 
the nem:I-al administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. 
Althounh the Governor, w ith the advice and consent of the Senate. appoints the Board, TMRS is not 
fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan 
under Section 401 no of the Intemal Re‘ %Toe Code. TMRS issues a publicly available 
comprehensive amntal financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at iswininirs.com. 

All eligib e employees af the City are required to participate in TMRS. 

Benefits Provided 

TMRS pro% ide:, retitement. disability. and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the 
governing body or the City. within the iptior - zi.ti ibc in the state statutes governing TMRS. 

At retirement. the benefit is calculnted as if the sum of the employee's contributions. with interest. 
and the Cily-financed monetary credits with intelest ‘sere used to purchase an annuity. Members 
may choose to receive their retirement benefit ist Mc of seven payments options. Members rnay also 
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as zt Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 
12. 24, or 36 monthly payments. hich cannot eweed 75% of the mcmber's deposits and interest. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the govetninn body of the City. within the options available in the 
state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the CU) were as follows: 

l'.mpioyec deposit rate 	 7.01,a 
Matching ratio (City to employee) 	2 to 
Years required lbr ‘estine 
Service retiremein 

!expressed as age years of ser% !eel 	Ott 5. 0(20 
'pdated service credit 	 ft" 41 

Annuity increase (to retirees) 	 of t 'PI 

Employees covered by benefit terms. 
At the December 31. 2014 valuation s:s1 nicieatt meta date, the following employees were covered by 
the bens:fit tennis: 

!midi% e employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 	 31 
Aclive employees 	 58  
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7. 	Defined Benefit Pension Plans - continued 

Contributions 

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%. b%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, 
and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing 
body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS. the contribution rate for each City is determined 
annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estirnated amount necessary to fimmce the cost of benefits earned by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the City of Celina, Texas were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual gross earnings 
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Celina. Texas were 347% and 5,24% in 
calendar years 2014 and 2015, respectively, The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended 
September 30, 2015, were $162,349, and were equal to the required contributions. 

Net Pension Liability 

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the Total Pension 
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
or that date. 

Actuarial assumptions: 

The Total Pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 	 3.0% per year 
Overall payroll growth 	3.0% per year 
Investment Rate of Return 	7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members. retirees. and 
beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male 
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully 
generational basis by scale 13B to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, 
the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2006 through 
December 31, 2009. first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality 
rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study 
covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the 
December 31, 2013 valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost 
method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation. 
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7. 	Defined Benefit Pension Plans — continued 

The long-term expected rate of retuni on pension plan investments is 7.0%. The pension plan's policy in 
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board or 
Tnistees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation 
as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of 
TMRS. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan invesunent expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-tenn expected rate of retuni by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estitnates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return (Arithmetic) 

Domestic Equity 17.50% 4.80'4 
International Equity 17.50% 6,05% 
Core Fixed Income 30.00% 1.50% 
Non-Core Fixed income l 0.00% 3.50% 
Real Return 5.00% 1,75% 
Real Estate 10.00% 5.75% 
Absolute Return 5,00% 4,25% 
Private Equity 5.00% 8.50% 

Total 100,00% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and ernployer contributions will be made at 
the rates specified in statute. Based on that assurnption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
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7, 	Defined Benefit Pension Plans — continued 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 

'fatal Peusiull til3ilìfy 	Plan Fiduciary NO Position 	Nrt Prnsion liability 

111k:we ;A 	12/31/2013 

rhangeN fur the year: 

2,755,535 	S 3,329,347 	S (573,102) 

&mice cast 149.c.f2 i49.542 

Interest 704,236 204.236 

Ch.mile al benefit term 

1M-creme between c ycetcd and actual Cs-pm:rice 1 1113 

Chanties tit asst:Aptions 

ContrNaloas - eurklyee 96,2.09 190.2091 

Contniritivus 	employee 201,034 {241,19.11 

Net investment nçun l9O.2O 1190.52W 

Rznera payments. inelutk-41 refunds uf employee contninatuns 125,2104 125,209) 

A titian istritive openar 1,9Ssi 1.900 

Other ehanues (1(3) In; 

Nct 	1iatigc 5 31012 	S 40,321 	S 79.369 

lialance at 12/31/2014 S 3,295,22 	S 3,789,670 	S (494,443) 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the (ity, calculated using the discount rate or 7.0, as 
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6,0%) or 1-percentage-point higher (S.0%) than the current rate: 

1 % Decrease in 

Discount Rate (6.0%) 
Dtscount Rate (7.0%) 

1% Increase in Discount 

Rate (SAli) 

CitYs net pension liability S 	105,014 (494,443) (975,854) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Nct Position is available in a separatcly-issited 
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the hiternet at mill-  ¡rum  

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions 

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of S132,002. 
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7. 	Defined Benefit Pension Plans — continued 

At September 30. 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
re.sources related to pensions front the following sources: 

1)e ferred Outflows Deferred inflows 

of Resources 	of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 	 9,549 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 	 34,027 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 	 132.564 

Total 	 S 	176,140 $ 

$132,564 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributimis 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the 
year ending September 30, 2015. Other arnounts reported as &fond outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended Dec 3 I ; 

2015 510.171 

2016 S10.171 

2017 $10,171 

2018 S10,170 

2019 S 	1,664 

Thereafter $ 	1,229 

8. litigation 

From time to tirne, the City is involved in litigation in the ordinary course of business. City 
management considers the likelihood of any material liability resulting from this litigation to be 
remote. 

9. Contingencies 

The City participates in various state and federal grant programs and contracts which are subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Audits of these programs for 
the year ended September 30, 2015 have not been conducted. Accordingly, the City's compliance 
with applicable grant and contract requirements will be established at SOITIC future date, The City 
expects that costs disallowed by these various awarding agencies. if any, would be minimal. 
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10. Balances and Transfers/Payments Within the Reporting Entity 

Receivables and Payables 

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as "due to/front other funds" in the 
govemtnental fund financial statements include outstanding charges by one fund to another for 
services or goods, and other miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds. Activity between 
funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are described as "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). The following 
schedule reports receivables and payables within the reporting entity at year-end: 

	

Receivable 	PayOje 
Debt Service Fund 	 S 	 S 20,278 
Proprietaty Fund 	 2,398.297 	400,000 
General Fund 	 438.916 
Capital Projects Fund 	 2,378,019 
Component units 	 38,916  

	

$2,837,213 	$241.3,74 2, I 3 

Trw4ers and Payments 

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purposes of funding capital 
projects and asset acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on a routine basis. Resources are 
accumulated in a fund to support and simplify the administration of various projects or programs. 

The following schedule reports transfers and payments within the reporting entity: 

Fund 	 Transfers in 	Transfers Out 
General Fund 	 S 395.000 
Proprietary Fund 	 395,000 

The transfer in from the Proprietary Fund provided (he General Fund with supplementary revenue for 
the year. In addition to the above transfers, the component units contributed S200,000 to the debt 
service fund in order to supplement debt service payments for the year. 

11. Operating Leases 

The City has entered into lease agreements for copier machines. Following is a summary of the 
annual minimum lease requirements under these agreements: 

Year ending 9/30 Annual lease requirement 
2016 19,638 
2017 16,824 
2018 16,824 
2019 14,235 
2020 5,589 

Total required S 73.110 

Lease expense for the year ending September 30. 2015 was S28,746. 
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12. Economic Dependence 

City operations are funded by taxes and revenues provided by the residents of the City of Celina, 
Texas. Accordingly. the City is economically dependent on the property values and local economy of 
City of Celina, Texas and the surrounding area. 

13. Post-Employment Benefits 

The City participates in the cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit group term life insurance 
plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental 
Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group term life insurance 
coverage to both current and retired etnployees. The City may terminate coverage under and 
discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be 
effective the following January 1. 

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the 
employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings. for the 12 month 
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an 
"other postemployment benefiC or OPEB, 

Contributions 

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual 
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one year term life insurance. The 
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all 
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund retiree term life insurance 
during employees entire careers. The City's contributions to the TN/IRS SDBF for the years ended 
2015, 2014 and 2013 were $4,405, $3,570 and $3,237, respectively, which equaled the required 
contributions each year. 

14. Prior Period Adjustments 

In 2015. the City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, 
and GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of 
GASB Statement No, 27. The adoption of this new standard required a prior period adjustment to 
opening equity in Business-type activities and the Proprietary fund in the amount of $79,110. It also 
required an adjustment to opening equity in Governmental activities in the amount of $560,941, 

15. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent to year-end, the City has issued additional certificates of obligation in the total atnount of 
S19,425,000 which represent direct obligations of the City and will have an effect on future debt 
service requirements. 

Subsequent to year-end, the City has issued special assessment revenue bonds in the total amount of 
$64,365,000. These bonds are special assessrnent obligations of the City payable solely from the 
pledged revenues and other funds in the trust estate. These special assessment bonds do not give rise 
to a charge against the general credit or the taxing power of the City and are payable solely from the 
sources identified in the indenture. 
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NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT 
[closing date] 

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 3600 
Dallas, Texas 75201-7932 
Uniteci States 

Tel +1 214 855 8000 
Fax +1 214 855 8200 
nortonrosefulbright.com  

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the "City of Celina, Texas, Tax and 
Waterworks and Sewer System (Limited Pledge) Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 
2016," dated July 1, 2016, in the principal amount of $9,735,000 (the "Certificatee), we have 
examined into their issuance by the City of Celina, Texas (the "City"), solely to express legal 
opinions as to the validity of the Certificates and the exclusion of the interest on the Certificates 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and for no other purpose. We have not 
been requested to investigate or verify, and we neither expressly nor by implication render 
herein any opinion concerning, the financial condition or capabilities of the City, the disclosure of 
any financial or statistical information or data pertaining to the City and used in the sale of the 
Certificates, or the sufficiency of the security for or the value or marketability of the Certificates. 

THE CERTIFICATES are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or 
any integral multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Certificates mature on September 1 in 
each of the years specified in the ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City authorizing 
the issuance of the Certificates (the "Ordinance), unless redeemed prior to maturity in 
accordance with the terms stated on the Certificates. The Certificates accrue interest from the 
dates, at the rates, and in the manner and interest is payable on the dates, all as provided in the 
Ordinance. 

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon (i) original or certified 
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Certificates, including the Ordinance 
and an examination of the initial Certificate executed and delivered by the City (which we found 
to be in due form and properly executed); (ii) certifications of officers of the City relating to the 
expected use and investment of proceeds of the sale of the Certificates and certain other funds 
of the City and (iii) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the 
examination of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Certificates, we have assumed 
the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of 
all documents submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained 
in such documents and certifications. 

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the 
United States of America and the State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof: 

1. 	The Certificates have been duly authorized by the City and, when issued in 
compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enforceable 
obligations of the City, payable from an ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by 
law, upon all taxable property in the City, and are additionally payable from and secured by a 
limited pledge of the Net Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) of the City's Waterworks and 
Sewer System in the manner and to the extent provided in the Ordinance, except to the extent 

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP is a limited liability partnership registered under the laws of Texas. 	 27301936.1/11600971 

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright Australia, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and Norton Rose 
Fulbright South Afnca Inc are separate legal entities and all of them are members of Norton Rose Fulbright Verein, a Swiss verein. Norton Rose 
Fulbnght Verein helps coordinate the activities of the members but does not itself provide legal services to clients Details of each entity, with certain 
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Page 2 of Legal Opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
	

't:IORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT 

Re: 	"City of Celina, Texas, Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System (Limited Pledge) 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016" 

that the enforceability thereof may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditors rights or the exercise of judicial discretion in 
accordance with the general principles of equity. 

2. 	Pursuant to section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to 
the date hereof (the "Code"), and existing regulations, published rulings, and court decisions 
thereunder, and assuming continuing compliance after the date hereof by the City with the 
provisions of the Ordinance relating to sections 141 through 150 of the Code, interest on the 
Certificates for federal income tax purposes (a) will be excludable from the gross income, as 
defined in section 61 of the Code, of the owners thereof, and (b) will not be included in 
computing the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals or, except as hereinafter 
described, corporations. Interest on the Certificates owned by a corporation will be included in 
such corporation's adjusted current earnings for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum 
taxable income of such corporations, other than an S corporation, a qualified mutual fund, a real 
estate mortgage investment conduit, a real estate investment trust, or a financial asset 
securitization investment trust (FASIr). A corporation's alternative minimum taxable income is 
the basis on which the alternative minimum tax imposed by section 55 of the Code will be 
computed. 

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION with respect to any other federal, state, or local tax consequences 
under present law or any proposed legislation resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, 
or the acquisition or disposition of, the Certificates. Ownership of tax-exempt obligations such 
as the Certificates may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial 
institutions, life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, certain 
foreign corporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C 
earnings and profits, owners of an interest in a FASIT, individual recipients of Social Security or 
Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for the earned income tax credit, 
and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or 
carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations. 

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are 
further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or 
supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our 
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective. 
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal 
Revenue Service; rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of 
existing law that we deem relevant to such opinions and in reliance upon the representations 
and covenants referenced above. 

27301936.1/11600971 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 

1449 



Celina Response 10 Staff 3-7 



Financial Advisory Services 
Provided By 

FirstSouthwestflt 
A Division of Hilltop Securities, 

1451 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



CERTIFICATE OF CITY SECRETARY 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTIES OF COLLIN AND DENTON 

CITY OF CELINA 

I, the undersigned, City Secretary of the City of Celina, Texas, DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
as follows: 

1. 	On the 19th  day of July, 2016, a regular meeting of the City Council (the 
"Council") of the City of Celina, Texas (the "City") was held at a meeting place within the City; 
the duly constituted members of the Council being as follows: 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

SEAN TERRY ) 

CHAD ANDERSON ) 

BILL WEBBER ) 
WAYNE NABORS ) 
ANDY HOPKINS ) 
CARMEN ROBERTS ) 
MINDY KOEHNE ) 

MAYOR 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

and all of said council members were present at said meeting, except the 
following:  Wayne Nabors  . Among other business considered at said meeting, the attached 
ordinance entitled: 

"ORDINANCE NO. 2016-52 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the issuance of "CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS, TAX 
AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) 
REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2016; specifying 
the terms and features of said certificates; providing for the payment of 
said certificates of obligation by the levy of an ad valorem tax upon all 
taxable property within the City and a limited pledge of the net revenues 
derived from the operation of the City's combined waterworks and sewer 
system; providing the terms and conditiöns of such certificates of 
obligation and resolving other matters incident and relating to the 
issuance, payment, security, sale and delivery of said certificates of 
obligation, including the approval and execution of a Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement and the approval and distribution of a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement pertaining 
thereto; and providing an effective date." 

was introduced and submitted to the Council for passage and adoption. After presentation and 
due consideration of the ordinance and, upon a motion made and seconded, the ordinance was 
duly passed and adopted by the Council to be effective immediately, in accordance with the 
provisions of Texas Govemment Code, Section 1201.028, as amended, by the following vote: 

5 	voted "For 0 voted "Against" 	 0 abstained 

  

all as shown in the official minutes of the Council for the meeting held on the aforesaid date. 
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2. 	The attached ordinance is a true and correct copy of the original on file in the 
official records of the City; the duly qualified and acting members of the Council of said City on 
the date of the aforesaid meeting are those persons shown above and, according to the records 
of my office, advance notice of the time, place and purpose of the -meeting was given to each 
member of the Council; and that said meeting, and the deliberation of the aforesaid public 
business, was open to the public and written notice of said meeting, including the subject of the 
above entitled ordinance, was posted and given in advance thereof in compliance with the 
provisions of Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, as amended. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name officially and affixed the seal 
of said City, this the 19th  day of July, 2016. 

City Secretary, 
City of Celina, Texas 
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ORDINANCE NO. 2016-52 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the issuance of "CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS, TAX 
AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) 
REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2016; specifying 
the terms and features of said certificates; providing for the payment of 
said certificates of obligation by the levy of an ad valorem tax upon all 
taxable property within the City and a limited pledge of the net revenues 
derived from the operation of the Citys combined waterworks and sewer 
system; providing the terms and conditions of such certificates of 
obligation and resolving other matters incident and relating to the 
issuance, payment, security, sale and delivery of said certificates of 
obligation, including the approval and execution of a Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement and the approval and distribution of a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement pertaining 
thereto; and providing an effective date. 

WHEREAS, notice of the City Council's intention to issue certificates of obligation in the 
maximum principal amount of $9,735,000 for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be 
incurred for (i) improving and extending the City's combined Waterworks and Sewer System, 
including the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor, (ii) acquiring equipment and vehicles 
for the police, fire, EMS, streets, traffic and transportation, and public works departments (iii) the 
acquisition, installation and improvement of municipal information technology systems, public 
safety and emergency management communications and radio systems, and public safety 
records management systems, (iv) acquiring, constructing and equipping buildings, structures 
and facilities for the public works department, (v) constructing, equipping and improving City 
Hall and (vi) professional services rendered in connection with such projects and the financing 
thereof; has been duly published in the Celina Record, a newspaper hereby found and 
determined to be of general circulation in the City of Celina, Texas, on June 3, 2016 and June 
10, 2016, the date of the first publication of such notice being not less than thirty-one (31) days 
prior to the tentative date stated therein for the passage of the ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of such certificates; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council met on July 12, 2016, and announced at the meeting that 
the consideration of the ordinance authorizing the c6rtificates of obligation described in the 
aforesaid notice would be delayed to the July 19, 2016 meeting of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, no petition protesting the issuance of the certificates of obligation arid 
bearing valid petition signatures of at least 5% of the qualified electors of the City, has been 
presented to or filed with the Mayor, City Secretary or any other official of the City on or prior to 
the date of the passage of this ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the certificates of obligation 
described in the aforesaid notice should be issued and sold at this time in the amount and 
manner as hereinafter provided; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: Authorization - Designation - Principal Amount - Purpose. Certificates of 
obligation of the City shall be and are hereby authorized to be issued in the aggregate principal 
amount of $9,735,000 to be designated and bear the title "CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS, TAX AND 
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF 

27360327.3/11600971 
	 1454 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



OBLIGATION, SERIES 2016" (hereinafter referred to as the "Certificates"), for the purpose of 
paying contractual obligations to be incurred for (i) improving and extending the City's combined 
Waterworks and Sewer System, including the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor, (ii) 
acquiring equipment and vehicles for the police, fire, EMS, streets, traffic and transportation, 
and public works departments (ill) the acquisition, installation and improvement of municipal 
information technology systems, public safety and emergency management communications 
and radio systems, and public safety records management systems, (iv) pcquiring, constructing 
and equipping buildings, structures and facilities for the public works department, 
(v) constructing, equipping and improving City Hall and (v) professional services rendered in 
connection with such projects and the financing thereof, pursuant to authority conferred by and 
in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including Texas Local 
Government Code, Subchapter C of Chapter 271, as amended. 

SECTION 2: Fully Registered Obligations - Authorized Denominations - Stated 
Maturities - Certificate Date. The Certificates are issuable in fully registered form only; shall be 
dated July 1, 2016 (the "Certificate Date) and shall be in denorninations of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof (within a Stated Maturity) and the Certificates shall become due and 
payable on September 1 in each of the years and in principal amounts (the "Stated Maturities") 
and bear interest at the per annum rate(s) in accordance with the following schedule: 

Year of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate(s) 

2017 $ 135,000 2.000% 
2018 235,000 3.000 
2019 315,000 3.000 
2020 330,000 3.000 
2021 340,000 4.000 
2022 305,000 4.000 
2023 315,000 4.000 
2024 445,000 4.000 
2025 630,000 4.000 
2026 655,000 4.000 
2027 555,000 2.000 
2028 565,000 2.125 
2029 575,000 2.250 
2030 580,000 2.375 
2031 600,000 2.500 
2032 
****** 

620,000 2.500 

2034 
****** 

1,285,000 
****** 

3.000 
****** 

2036 1,250,000 3.000 

The Certificates shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the date of 
delivery to the initial purchaser at the rates per annum shown above in this Section (calculated 
on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), and such interest shall be payable on 
March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2017, until maturity or prior 
redemption. 

SECTION 3: Terms of Payment Paying Agent/Registrar. The principal of, premium, if 
any, and the interest on the Certificates, due and payable by reason of maturity, redemption, or 
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otherwise, shall be payable only to the registered owners or holders of the Certificates 
(hereinafter called the "Holders') appearing on the registration and transfer books maintained by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the payment thereof shall be in any coin or currency of the 
United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public 
and private debts, and shall be without exchange or collection charges to the Holders. 

The selection and appointment of U.S. Bank National Association, Dallas, Texas, to 
serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates is hereby approved and confirmed. Books 
and records relating to the registration, payment, transfer and exchange of the Certificates (the 
"Security Register) shall at all times be kept and maintained on behalf of the City by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, as provided herein and in accordance with the terms and provisions of a 
"Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement", substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
and such reasonable rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City may 
prescribe. The Mayor and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such 
Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement in connection with the delivery of the Certificates. The City 
covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Certificates are 
paid and discharged, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, 
trust company, financial institution or other entity qualified and authorized to serve in such 
capacity and perform the duties and services of Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon any change in 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates, the City agrees to promptly cause a written 
notice thereof to be sent to each Holder by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, which 
notice shall also give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Certificates, shall be payable at the Stated 
Maturities or the redemption thereof only upon presentation and surrender of the Certificates to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar at its designated offices, initially in St. Paul, Minnesota, or, with 
respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the designated offices of such successor (the 
"Designated Payment/Transfer Office). interest on the Certificates shall be paid to the Holders 
whose names appear in the Security Register at the close of business on the Re6ord Date (the 
fifteenth day of the month next preceding each interest payment date) and shall be paid by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar (i) by check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the 
address of the Holder recorded in the Security Register or (ii) by such other method, acceptable 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Hokier. If the 
date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by iaw or 
executive order to close, then the•date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which 
is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are authorized to 
close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original 
date payment was due. 

In the event of a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) 
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be 
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest 
have been received. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of 
the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at 
least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States Mail, first class 
postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close 
of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 
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SECTION 4: Redemption. 

(a) Optional Redemption. The Certificates maturing on and after September 1, 2027 
shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, in whole.or in part in 
principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if in part by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), on September 1, 2026, or on any date thereafter, at the redemption price of 
par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

At least forty five (45) days prior to an optional redemption date for the Certificates 
(unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar), the City 
shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of the decision to redeem Certificates, the principal 
amount of each Stated Maturity to be redeemed, and the date of redemption therefor. 

(b) Mandatorv Redemption. The Certificates maturing on September 1, 2034 and 
September 1, 2036 (the "Term Certificates') shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part 
prior to maturity at the redemption price of par and accrued interest to the date of redemption on 
the respective dates and in principal amounts as follows: 

Term Certificates due September 1, 2034  Term Certificates due September 1, 2036 
Redemption Date Principal Amount ($) Redemption Date Principal Amount ($) 

2033 635,000 2035 675,000 
2034* 650,000 2036* 575,000 

* Stated maturity. 

Approximately forty-five (45) days prior to each mandatory redemption date for the Term 
Certificates, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select by lot the numbers of the Term Certificates 
within the applicable Stated Maturity to be redeemed on the next following September 1 from 
moneys set aside for that purpose in the Certificate Fund (as hereinafter defined). Any Term 
Certificate not selected for prior redemption shall be paid on the date of their Stated Maturity. 

The principal amount of the Term Certificates for a Stated lvtaturity required to be 
redeemed on a mandatory redemption date may be reduced, at the option of the City, by the 
principal amount of Term Certificates of like Stated Maturity which, at least 50 days prior to the 
mandatory redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the City at a price not exceeding 
the principal amount of such Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of purchase 
thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 'cancellation or (2) shall have been 
redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions set forth in paragraph (a) of this 
Section and not theretofore credited against a mandatory redemption requirement. 

(c) Selection of Certificates for Redemption. lf less than all Outstanding Certificates 
of the same Stated Maturity are to be redeemed on a redemption date, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall treat such Certificates as representing the number of Certificates 
Outstanding which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Certificates by $5,000 
and shall select the Certificates to be redeemed within such Stated Maturity by lot. 

(d) Notice of Redemption. Not less than thirty (30) days prior to a redemption date 
for the Certificates, a notice of redemption shall be sent by United States mail, first class 
postage prepaid, in the name of the City and at the Citys expense, to each Holder of a 
Certificate to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address of the Holder appearing on the 
Security Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of 
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mailing such notice, and any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given irrespective of whether received by the Holder. 

All notices of redemption shall (i) specify the date of redemption for the Certificates, 
(ii) identify the Certificates to be redeemed and, in the case of a portion of the principal amount 
to be redeemed, the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (iii) state the redemption price, 
(iv) state that the Certificates, or the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, 
shall become due and payable on the redemption date specified and the interest thereon, or on 
the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall cease to accrue from and after 
the redemption date, provided moneys sufficient for the payment of such Certificate (or the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed) at the then applicable redemption price are held for 
the purpose of such payment by the Paying Agent/Registrar and (v) specify that payment of the 
redemption price for the Certificates, or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall be 
made at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon 
presentation and surrender of the Certificates. If a Certificate is subject by its terms to prior 
redemption and has been called for redemption and notice of redemption has been duly given 
as hereinabove provided, such Certificate (or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) shall 
become due and payable and interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the 
redemption date therefor. 

(e) 	Conditional Notice of Redemption. With respect to any optional redemption of 
the Certificates, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the Certificates to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said 
redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or 
prior to the date fixed for such rederription, or upon the satisfaction of any prerequisites set forth 
in such notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of 
no force and effect, the City shall not redeem such Certificates and the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that 
the Certificates have not been redeemed. 

SECTION 5: Registration - Transfer - Exchange of Certificates - Predecessor 
Certificates. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security 
Register the name and address of each and every owner of the Certificates issued under and 
pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance, or if appropriate, the nominee thereof. Any 
Certificate may be transferred or exchanged for Certificates of other authorized denominations 
by the Holder, in person or by his duly authorized agent, upon surrender of such Certificate to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or 
request for exchange duly executed by the Holder or by his duly authorized agent, in form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Upon surrender of any Certificate (other than the single Initial Certificate(s) authorized in 
Section 8 hereof) for transfer at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, in the name of the 
designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Certificates of authorized denominations 
and having the same Stated Maturity and of a like aggregate principal amount as the Certificate 
or Certificates surrendered for transfer. 

At the option of the Holder, Certificates (other than the single Initial Certificate(s) 
authorized in Section 8 hereof) may be exchanged for other Certificates of authorized 
denominations and having the same Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of 
like aggregate principal amount as the Certificates surrendered for exchange, upon surrender of 
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the Certificates to be exchanged at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. Whenever any Certificates are surrendered for exchange, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver new Certificates to the Holder requesting the 
exchange. 

All Certificates issued in any transfer or exchange of Certificates shall be delivered to the 
Holders at the Designated Paymentrfransfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar or sent by 
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the Holders, and, upon the registration and 
delivery thereof, the same shall be the valid obligations of the City, evidencing the same 
obligation to pay, and entitled to the same benefits under this Ordinance, as the Certificates 
surrendered in such transfer or exchange. 

All transfers or exchanges of Certificates pursuant to this Section shall be made without 
expense or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or 
exchange of any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such 
transfer or exchange. 

Certificates cancelled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions 
hereof are hereby defined to be "Predecessor Certificates", evidencing all or a portion, as the 
case may be, of the same obligation to pay evidenced by the new Certificate or Certificates 
registered and delivered in the exchange or transfer therefor. Additionally, the term 
"Predecessor Certificatee shall include any mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen Certificate for 
which a replacement Certificate has been issued, registered and delivered in lieu thereof 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 20 hereof and such new replacement Certificate shall be 
deemed to evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen Certificate. 

Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue or transfer to 
an assignee of a Holder any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 days 
of the date fixed for the redemption of such Certificate; provided, however, such limitation on 
transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance 
of a Certificate called for redemption in part. 

SECTION 6: Book-Entry-Only Transfers and Transactions. 	Notwithstanding the 
provisions contained in Sections 3, 4 and 5 hereof relating to the payment, and 
transfer/exchange of the Certificates, the City hereby approves and authorizes the use of "Book-
Entry-Only" securities clearance, settlement and transfer system provided by The Depository 
Trust Company, a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New 
York (DTC"), in accordance with the operational arrangements referenced in the Blanket Issuer 
Letter of Representations by and between the City and DTC (the "Depository Agreemenr). 

Pursuant to the Depository Agreement and the rules of DTC, the Certificates shall be 
deposited with DTC who shall hold said Certificates for its participants (the "DTC Participants"). 
While the Certificates are held by DTC under the Depository Agreement, the Holder of the 
Certificates on the Security Register for all purposes, including payment and notices, shall be 
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, notwithstanding the ownership of each actual purchaser or 
owner of each Certificate (the "Beneficial Owners") being recorded in the records of DTC and 
DTC Participants. 

In the event DTC determines to discontinue serving as securities depository for the 
Certificates or otherwise ceases to provide book-entry clearance and settlement of securities 
transactions in general or the City decides to discontinue use of the system of book-entry 
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transfers through DTC, the City covenants and agrees with the Holders of the Certificates to 
cause Certificates to be printed in definitive form and issued and delivered to DTC Participants 
and Beneficial Owners, as the case may be. Thereafter, the Certificates in definitive form shall 
be assigned, transferred and exchanged on the Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and payment of such Certificates shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 3, 4 and 5 hereof. 

SECTION 7: Execution - Registration. The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of 
the City by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem under its seal reproduced or impressed thereon and 
countersigned by the City Secretary. The signature of said officers on the Certificates may be 
manual or facsimile. Certificates bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of individuals who 
are or were the proper officers of the City on the Certificate Date shall be deemed to be duly 
executed on behalf of the City, notwithstanding that one or more of the individuals executing the 
same shall cease to be such officer at the time of delivery of the Certificates to the initial 
purchaser(s) and with respect to Certificates delivered in subsequent exchanges and transfers, 
all as authorized and provided in Texas Government Code Chapter 1201, as amended. 

No Certificate shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Certificate either a certificate of 
registration substantially in the form provided in Section 9(c), manually executed by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or his duly authorized agent, or a 
certificate of registration substantially in the form provided in Section 9(d), manually executed by 
an authorized officer, employee or representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and either such 
certificate duly signed upon any Certificate shall be conclusive evidence, and the only evidence, 
that such Certificate has been duly certified, registered and delivered. 

SECTION 8: Initial Certificate(sl. The Certificates herein authorized shall be initially 
issued either (i) as a single fully registered certificate in the total principal amount stated in 
Section 1 hereof with principal installments to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 
hereof and numbered T-1, or (ii) as multiple fully registered certificates with one certificate for 
each year of maturity in the applicable principal amount and denomination and to be numbered 
consecutively from T-1 and upward (hereinafter called the "Initial Certificate(s)) and, in either 
case, the Initial Certificate(s) shall be registered in the name of the initial purchaser(s) or the 
designee thereof. The Initial Certificate(s) shall be the Certificate(s) submitted to the Office of 
the Attomey General of the State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office of 
the Cpmptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and delivered to the initial 
purchaser(s). Any time after the delivery of the Initial Certificate(s), the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
pursuant to.  written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or the designee thereof, shall 
cancel th.e Initial Certificate(s) delivered hereunder and exchange therefor definitive Certificates 
of authorized denominations, Stated Ivlaturities, principal amounts and bearing applicable 
interest rates for transfer and delivery to the Holders named at the addresses identified therefor, 
all pursuant to and in accordance with such written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or 
the designee thereof, and such other information and documentation as the Paying 
Agent/Registrar may reasonably require. 

SECTION 9: Forms. 

(a) 	Forms Generally. The Certificates, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, 
and the form of Assignment to be printed on each of the Certificates, shall be substantially in the 
forms set forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and 
other variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters, 
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numbers, or other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the 
Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers 
Association) and such legends and endorsements (including insurance legends in the event the 
Certificates, or any maturities thereof, are purchased with insurance and any reproduction of an 
opinion of counsel) thereon as may, consistently herewith, be established by the City or 
determined by the officers executing such Certificates as evidenced by their execution. Any 
portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse thereof, with an 
appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificate. 

The definitive Certificates and the Initial Certificate(s) shall be printed, lithographed, 
engraved, typewritten, photocopied or otherwise reproduced in any other similar manner, all as 
determined by the officers executing such Certificates as evidenced by their execution. 

(b) 	Form of Definitive Certificates. 

REGISTERED 	 REGISTERED 
NO. 	 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TEXAS 

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
TAX AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2016 

Certificate Date: 	Interest Rate: 	Stated Maturity: 	CUSIP No.: 
July 1, 2016 	 September 1, 20 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 	 DOLLARS 

The City of Celina (hereinafter referred to as the "City.), a body corporate and municipal 
corporation in the Counties of Collin and Denton, State of Texas, for value received, 
acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named 
above, or the registered assigns thereof, on the Stated Maturity date specified above the 
Principal Amount hereinabove stated (or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior 
redemption) and to pay interest on the unpaid principal amount hereof from the interest payment 
date next preceding the "Registration Date of this Certificate appearing below (unless this 
Certificate bears a "Registration Date as of an interest payment date, in which case it shall bear 
interest from such date, or unless the "Registration Date of this Certificate is prior to the initial 
interest payment date in which case it shall bear interest from the date of delivery to the initial 
purchaser) at the per annum rate of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on March 1. and September 1 in 
each year, commencing March 1, 2017, until maturity or prior redemption. Principal of this 
Certificate is payable at its Stated Maturity or on a redemption date to the registered owner 
hereof, upon presentation and surrender, at the Designated PaymentfTransfer Office of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar executing the registration certificate appearing hereon, or its successor; 
provided, however, while this Certificate is registered to Cede & Co., the payment of principal 
upon a partial redemption of the principal amount hereof may be accomplished without 
presentation and surrender of this Certificate, Interest is payable to the registered owner of this 
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Certificate (or one or more Predecessor Certificates, as defined in the Ordinance hereinafter 
referenced) whose name appears on the "Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the 'Record Date', which is the fifteenth day of the 
month next preceding each interest payment date, and interest shall be paid by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of 
the registered owner recorded in the Security Register or by such other method, acceptable to 
'the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner, 
lf the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates .shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the Designated 
Paymentffransfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which 
is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are authorized to 
close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original 
date payment was due. All payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this 
Certificate shall be without exchange or collection charges to the owner hereof and in any coin 
or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the 
payment of public and private debts. 

This Certificate is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal 
amount of $9,735,000 (herein referred to as the "Certificates') for the purpose of paying 
contractual obligations to be incurred for (i) improving and extending the Citys combined 
Waterworks and Sewer System, including the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor, 
(ii) acquiring equipment and vehicles for the police, fire, EMS, streets, traffic and transportation, 
and public works departments (iii) the acquisition, installation and improvement of municipal 
information technology systems, public safety and emergency management communications 
and radio systems, and public safety records management systems, (iv) acquiring, constructing 
and equipping buildings, structures and facilities for the public works department, 
(v) constructing, equipping and improving City Hall and (v) professional services rendered in 
connection with such projects and the financing thereof, under and in strict conformity with the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly Texas Local Government Code, 
Subchapter C of Chapter 271, as amended, and pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the City 
Council of the City (herein referred to as the "Ordinance"). 

The Certificates maturing on the dates hereinafter identified (the "Term Certificates") are 
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity with funds on deposit in the Certificate Fund 
established and maintained for the payment thereof in the Ordinance, and shaH be redeemed in 
part prior to maturity at the price of par and accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption, 
and without premium, on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Term Certificates due September 1, 2034  Term Certificates due September 1, 2036 
Redemption Date Principal Amount ($) Redemption Date Principal Amount ($) 

2033 635,000 2035 675,000 
2034* 650,000 2036* 575,000 

* Stated Maturity 

The particular Term Certificates of a stated maturity to be redeemed on each redemption 
date shall be chosen by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar; provided, however, that the principal 
amount of Term Certificates for a stated maturity required to be redeemed on a mandatory 
redemption date may be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of Term 
Certificates of like stated maturity which, at least 50 days prior to the mandatory redemption 
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date, (1) shall have been acquired by the City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of 
such Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation or (2) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the 
optional redemption provisions appearing below and not theretofore credited against a 
mandatory redemption requirement. 

The Certificates maturing on and after September 1, 2027 may be redeemed prior to 
their Stated Maturities, at the option of the City, in whole or in part in principal amounts of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if in part by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), on 
September 1, 2026 or on any date thereafter, at the redemption price of par, together with 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

At least thirty (30) days prior to a redemption date, the City shall cause a written notice 
of such redemption to be sent by United States lvlail, first class postage prepaid, to the 
registered owners of each Certificate to be redeemed at the address shown on the Security 
Register and subject to the terms and provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance. lf 
a Certificate (ôr any portion of its principal sum) shall have been duly called for redemption and 
notice of such redemption duly given, then upon the redemption date such Certificate (or the 
portion of its principal sum to be redeemed) shall become due and payable, and, if moneys for 
the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the principal amount to be 
redeemed to the date of redemption are held for the purpose of such payment by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable from and after the redemption 
date on the principal amount redeemed. 

In the event a portion of the principal amount of a Certificate is to be redeemed and the 
registered owner is someone other than Cede & Co., payment of the redemption price of such 
principal amount shall be made to the registered owner only upon presentation and surrender of 
such Certificate to the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and a 
• new Certificate or Certificates of like maturity and interest rate in any authorized denominations 
provided by the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum thereof will be 
issued to the registered owner, without charge. lf a Certificate is selected for redemption, in 
whole or in part, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to transfer such 
Certificate to an assignee of the registered owner within forty-fiVe (45) days of the redemption 
date therefor, provided, however, such limitation on transferability shall not be applicable to an 
exchange by the registered owner of the unredeemed balance of a Certificate redeemed in part. 

With respect to any optional redemption of the Certificates, unless moneys sufficient to 
pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates to be redeemed shall 
have been received by the Paying Agent/Regierar prior to the giving of such notice of 
redemption, such notice may state that said redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such 
moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon 
the satisfaction of any prerequisites set forth in such notice of redemption; and, if sufficient 
moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the City shall not redeem 
such Certificates and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the 
notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Certificates have not been redeemed. 

The Certificates are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax levied, within the 
limitations prescribed by law, upon all taxable property in the City and from a limited pledge of 
the Net Revenues of the City's combined Waterworks and Sewer System (the "System"), such 
pledge being limited to an amount of $1,000 and being junior and subordinate to the lien on and 
pledge of such Net Revenues securing the payment of the Prior Lien Obligations (identified and 
defined in the Ordinance) now outstanding and hereafter issued by the City. In the Ordinance, 
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the City reserves and retains the right to issue Prior Lien Obligations without limitation as to 
principal amount but subject to any applicable terms, conditions or restrictions under law or 
otherwise, as well as the right to issue additional obligations payable from the same sources as 
the Certificates and, together with the Certificates, equally and ratably secured by a parity lien 
on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all the provisions of which the 
owner or holder of this Certificate by the acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of 
terms; the description of and the nature and extent of the tax levied for the payment of the 
Certificates; the Net Revenues pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Certificates; the nature and extent and manner of enforcement of the pledge; the terms and 
conditions relating to the transfer or exchange of this Certificate; the conditions upon which the 
Ordinance may be amended or supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the 
rights, duties, and obligations of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and 
provisions upon which the tax levy and the pledges, charges and covenants made therein may 
be discharged at or prior to the maturity of this Certificate, and this Certificate deemed to be no 
longer Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions contained therein. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings assigned in the 
Ordinance. 

This Certificate, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be 
transferred on the Security Register only upon its presentation and surrender at the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, with the Assignment hereon duly 
endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by, the registered owner hereof, or his duly authorized 
agent. When a transfer on the Security Register occurs, one or more new fully registered 
Certificates of the same Stated Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of 
interest, and of the same aggregate principal amount will be issued by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the 
registered owner whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the 
owner entitled to payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Certificate as 
the owner entitled to payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or upon its prior 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner for all other purposes, 
and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by 
notice to the contrary. In the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date and 
for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a "Special Record 
Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of 
such interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the 
scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special 
Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by 
United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder appearing on the 
Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of 
mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, recited, represented and declared that the City is a body corporate 
and political subdivision duly organized and legally existing under and by virtue of the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas; that the issuance of the Certificates is duly 
authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and things required to exist and be done precedent to 
and in the issuance of the Certificates to render the same lawful and valid obligations of the City 
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have been properly done, have happened and have been performed in reguiar and due time, 
form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and the 
Ordinance; that the Certificates do not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation; and that 
due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates 
as aforestated. In case any provision in this Certificate shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 
the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. The terms and provisions of this Certificate and the Ordinance 
shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City has caused this Certificate to be 
duly executed under the official seal of the City as of the Certificate Date. 

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

[Mayor][Mayor Pro Tem] 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

City Secretary 

(City Seal) 

(c) 	Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to appear on 
Initial Certificate(s) only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
THE COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
REGISTER NO. 

 

  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Certificate has been examined, certified as to validity, and 
approved by the Attomey General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this 	  

Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas 

(SEAL) 
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(d) Form of Certificate of Paving Agent/Registrar to appear on Definitive Certificates 
only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Certificate has been duly issued and registered under the provisions of the within 
mentioned Ordinance; the certificate or certificates of the above entitled and designated series 
originally delivered having been approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and 
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

The designated office of the Paying Agent/Registrar located in St. Paul, !Minnesota, is 
the "Designated Payment/Transfer Office" for this Certificate. 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
Dallas, Texas, 
as Paying Agent/Registrar 

Registration Date: 

By 

	

	  
Authorized Signature 

(e) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto 
(Print or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): 	  

(Social Security or other identifying number 	 ) the within 
Certificate and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

attorney to transfer the within Certificate on the books kept for registration thereof, with full 
power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: 

  

NOTICE: The signature on this assign-
ment must correspond with the narne of 
the registered owner as it appears on 
the face of the within Certificate in every 
particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
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(f) 	The Initial Certificate(s) shaH be in the form set forth in paragraph (b) of this 
Section, except that the form of a single fully registered Initial Certificate shall be modified as 
follows: 

Heading and first paragraph shall be modified to read as follows: 

REGISTERED 	 REGISTERED 
NO. T-1 	 $9,735,000 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TEXAS 

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
TAX AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2016 

Certificate Date: July 1, 2016 

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount: NINE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 

The City of Celina (hereinafter referred to as the "City"), a body corporate and municipal 
corporation in the Counties of Collin and Denton, State of Texas, for value received, 
acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named 
above, or the registered assigns thereof, the Principal Amount hereinabove stated on 
September 1 in each of the years and in principal installments in accordance with the following 
schedule: 

YEAR OF 
MATURITY 

 

PRINCIPAL 
INSTALLMENTS 

 

INTEREST 
RATE 

     

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 2 hereof). 

(or so much thereof as shall not have been redeemed prior to maturity) and to pay interest on 
the unpaid principal amounts hereof from the date of delivery to the initial purchaser at the per 
annum rate(s) of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months; such interest being payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, 
commencing March 1, 2017, until maturity or prior redernption. Principal installments of this 
Certificate are payable on the Stated Maturity dates or on a redemption date to the registered 
owner hereof by U.S. Bank National Association, Dallas, Texas (the "Paying Agent/Registrar), 
upon its presentation and surrender at its designated offices, initially in St. Paul, Minnesota, or, 
with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the designated office of such successor 
(the "Designated Payment/Transfer Office"). Interest is payable to the registered owner of this 
Certificate whose name appears on the "Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the "Record Date", which is the fifteenth day of the 
month next preceding each interest payment date hereof and interest shall be paid by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the 
address of the registered owner recorded in the Security Register or by such other method, 
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the 
registered owner. If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates 
shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city 
where the Designated Paymentaransfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are 

27360327.3/11600971 
	

14 
	 1467 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking 
institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and 
effect as if made on the original date payment was due. All payments of principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on this Certificate shall be without exchange or collection charges to the owner 
hereof and in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment 
is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

SECTION 10: Definitions. For purposes of this Ordinance' and for clarity with respect to 
the issuance of the Certificates herein authorized, and the levy of taxes and appropriation of Net 
Revenues therefor, the following words or terms, whenever the same appears herein without 
qualifying language, are defined to mean as follows: 

(a) The term 'Additional Obligations" shall mean tax and revenue obligations 
hereafter issued which by their terms are payable from ad valorem taxes and additionally 
payable from and secured by a parity lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System of 
equal rank and dignity with the lien and pledge securing the payment of the Certificates. 

(b) The term "Certificates" shall mean the $9,735,000 "CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS, 
TAX AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2016" authorized by this Ordinance. 

(c) The term "Certificate Fund" shall mean the special fund created and established 
under the provisions of Section 11 of this Ordinance. 

(d) The term "Collection Date" shall mean, when reference is being made to the levy 
and collection of annual ad valorem taxes, the date the annual ad valorem taxes levied each 
year by the City become delinquent. 

(e) The term "Fiscal Year" shall mean the annual financial accounting period used 
with respect to the operations of the System now ending on September 30th of each year; 
provided, however, the City Council may change, by ordinance duly passed, such annual 
financial accounting period to end on another date if such change is found and determined to be 
necessary for budgetary or other fiscal purposes. 

(f) The terrn "Government Securities" shall mean (i) direct noncallable obligations of 
the United States of America, including obligations the principal of and interest on which are 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable obligations of an 
agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations unconditionally guaranteed 
or insured by the agency or instrumentality and, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by 
the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not 
less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, 
municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the 
date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent and (iv) any 
other then authorized securities or obligations that may be used to defease obligations such as 
the Certificates under the then applicable laws of the State of Texas. 

(g) The term 'Gross Revenuee shall mean, with respect to the System and for any 
defined period, all income and revenues derived from the operation and ownership of the 
System, excluding, however, meter deposits, gifts, grants in aid of construction and similar kinds 
of receipts and moneys restricted as to use or expenditure. 
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(h) The term 4Net Revenues" shall mean, with respect to the System and for any 
defined period, the Gross Revenues of the System after deducting the System's Operating and 
Maintenance Expenses. 

(i) The term "Operating and Maintenance Expenses" shall mean, for any defined 
period, all current expenses and costs of operating and maintaining the System, including all 
salaries, labor, materials and repairs and extensions necessary to render efficient service; 
provided, however, that only such repairs and extensions, as in the judgment of the City 
Council, reasonably and fairly exercised, are necessary to keep the System in operation and 
render adequate service to the City and the inhabitants thereof, or such as might be necessary 
to meet some physical accident or condition which would otherwise impair the security of any 
Certificates or obligations payable from and secured by a lien on the Net Revenues of the 
System, shall be deducted in determining "Net Revenues". Depreciation and payments into and 
out of the funds maintained for the payment of the Prior Lien Dbligations and similar funds 
maintained for the payment of obligations payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of 
the Net Revenues shall never be considered as Operating and Maintenance Expenses. 

The term "Outstanding" when used in this Ordinance with respect to Certificates 
means, as of the date of determination, all Certificates theretofore issued and delivered under 
this Ordinance, except: 

(1) those Certificates cancelled by the Paying Agent/Registrar or 
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

(2) those Certificates for which payment has been duly provided by 
the City in accordance with the provisions of Section 21 hereof; and 

(3) those Certificates that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or 
stolen and replacement Certificates have been registered and delivered in lieu 
thereof as provided in Section 20 hereof. 

(k) 	The term 'Prior Lien Obligations" shall mean (A) all revenue bonds or other 
obligations hereafter issued, payable solely from and secured only by a lien on and pledge of 
the Net Revenues of the System, and (B) obligations now outstanding and hereafter issued 
which by the terms of this Ordinance and the ordinances authorizing their issuance have a prior 
right and claim on the Net Revenues of the System to the claim and right securing the payment 
of the Certificates, including, but not limited to, the outstanding 

(1) "City of Celina, Texas, Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System 
Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004, dated October 1, 2004; 
and 

(2) "City of Celina, Texas, Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007, dated September 1, 2007. 

(I) 	The term °System" shall mean all plants, properties and facilities owned, 
operated and maintained by the City for the supply, storage and distribution of treated water and 
the collection, treatment and disposal of water-carried wastes, together with all future 
improvements, extensions, enlargements and additions thereto and replacements thereof. 

SECTION 11: Certificate Fund. For the purpose of paying the interest on and to provide 
a sinking fund for the payment, redemption and retirement of the Certificates, there shall be and 
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is hereby created a special account or fund on the books and records of the City known as the 
"SPECIAL SERIES 2016 TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION FUND" (the 
"Certificate Fund"), and all moneys deposited to the credit of such fund shall be shall be kept 
and maintained in a special banking account at the City's depository bank. The Mayor, Mayor 
Pro Tem, City Manager, Interim City Manager, Director of Finance and City Secretary, 
individualiy or collectively, of the City are hereby authorized and directed to make withdrawals 
from said fund sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Certificates as the same 
become due and payable, and, shall cause to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar from 
moneys on deposit in the Certificate Fund an amount sufficient to pay the amount of principal 
and/or interest falling due on the Certificates, such transfer of funds to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to be made in such manner as will cause immediately available funds to be 
deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before the last business day next preceding 
each interest and principal payment date for the Certificates. 

Pending the transfer of funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar, money in the Certificate 
Fund may, at the option of the City, be invested in obligations identified in, and in accordance 
with the provisions of the 'Public Funds Investment Acr (Texas Government Code, Chapter 
2256, as amended) relating to the investment of "bond proceeds"; provided that all such 
investments shall be made in such a manner that the money required to be expended from said 
fund will be available at the proper time or times. All interest and income derived from deposits 
and investments in said Certificate Fund shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, the said 
Certificate Fund. All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any 
default in connection with the Certificates. 

SECTION 12: Tax Levv. 	To provide for the payment of the "Debt Service 
Requirements" on the Certificates being (i) the interest on said Certificates and (ii) a sinking 
fund for their payment at maturity or redemption or a sinking fund of 2% (whichever amount 
shall be the greater), there shall be and there is hereby levied a sufficient tax on each one 
hundred dollars valuation of taxable property in said City, within the limitations prescribed by 
law, adequate to pay such Debt Service Requirements while the Certificates remain 
Outstanding, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection; and said tax 
shall be assessed and collected each year and applied to the payment of the Debt Service 
Requirements, and the same shall not be diverted to any other purpose. The taxes so levied 
and collected shall be paid into the Certificate Fund. The City Council hereby declares its 
purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax legally and fully sufficient to pay the said Debt 
Service Requirements, it having been determined that the existing and available taxing authority 
of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a legally sufficient tax in consideration of all 
other outstanding indebtedness. 

The amount of taxes to be provided annually for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Certificates shall be determined and accomplished in the following manner: 

(a) Prior to the date the City Council establishes the annual tax rate and passes an 
ordinance levying ad valorem taxes each year, the City Council shall determine: 

(1) 	The amount on deposit in the Certificate Fund after (a) deducting 
therefrom the :total amount of Debt Service Requirements to become due on 
Certificates prior to the Collection Date for the ad valorem taxes to be levied and 
(b) adding thereto the amount of the Net Revenues of the System, together with 
any other lawfully available revenues of the City, appropriated and allocated to 
pay such Debt Service Requirements prior to the Collection Date for the ad 
valorem taxes to be levied. 
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(2) The amount of Net Revenues of the System, together with any 
other lawfully available revenues of the City, appropriated and to be set aside for 
the payment of the Debt Service Requirements on the Certificates between the 
Collection Date for the taxes then to be levied and the Collection Date for the 
taxes to be levied during the next succeeding calendar year. 

(3) The amount of Debt Service Requirements to become due and 
payable on the Certificates (or a sinking fund of 2% if greater than the amount 
due and payable on the Certificates) between the Collection Date for the taxes 
then to be levied and the Collection Date for the taxes to be levied during the 
next succeeding calendar year. 

(b) 	The amount of taxes to be levied annually each year to pay the Debt Service 
Requirements on the Certificates shall be the amount established in paragraph (3) above less 
the sum total of the amounts established in paragraphs (1) and (2), after taking into 
consideration delinquencies and costs of collecting such annual taxes. 

Any surplus proceeds from the sale of the Certificates not expended for authorized 
purposes shall be deposited in the Certificate Fund, and such amounts so deposited shall 
reduce the sums otherwise required to be deposited in said Fund from ad valorem taxes. 

SECTION 13: Limited Pledge of Revenues. The City hereby covenants and agrees 
that, subject to the prior lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System to the payment 
and security of Prior Lien Obligations, the Net Revenues of the System in an amount equal to 
$1,000 are hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Certificates, and the limited pledge of $1,000 of the Net Revenues of the System herein made 
for the payment of the Certificates shall constitute a lien on the Net Revenues of the System 
(until such time as the City shall pay all of such $1,000, after which time the pledge shall cease) 
in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof. Furthermore, such lien on and pledge of 
the Net Revenues securing the payment of the Certificates shall be valid and binding and fully 
perfected from and after the date of adoption of this Ordinance without physical delivery or 
transfer or transfer of control of the Net Revenues, the filing of this Ordinance or any other act; 
all as provided in Texas Government Code, Chapter 1208, as amended ("Chapter 1208). 

Chapter 1208 applies to the issuance of the Certificates and the pledge of the Net 
Revenues of the System granted by the City under this Section 13, and such pledge is therefore 
valid, effective and perfected. lf Texas law is amended at any time while the Certificates are 
Outstanding such that the pledge of the Net Revenues of the System granted by the City under 
this Section 13 is to be subject to the filing requirements of the Texas Business and Commerce 
Code, Chapter 9, as amended, then in order to preserve to the registered owners of the 
Certificates the perfection of the security interest in said pledge, the City agrees to take such 
measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Texas Business and Commerce Code, Chapter 9, as amended, and 
enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur. 

SECTION 14: System Fund. The City covenants and agrees that all Gross Revenues 
(excluding eamings from the investment of money held in any special funds or accounts created 
for the payment and security of the Prior Lien Obligations) shall be deposited as collected into a 
fund maintained at an official depository of the City and known on the books of the City as the 
"System Fund" (hereinafter called the "System Fund"). All moneys deposited to the credit of the 
System Fund shall be allocated, dedicated and disbursed to the extent required for the following 
purposes and in the order of priority shown, to wit: 
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First: To the payment of all necessary and reasonable Operating and 
Maintenance Expenses of the System as defined herein or required by statute to 
be a first charge on and claim against the revenues thereof. 

Second: To the payment of all amounts required to be deposited in the special 
Funds created and established for the payment, security and benefit of Prior Lien 
Obligations in accordance with the terms and provisions of the ordinances 
authorizing the issuance of Prior Lien Obligations. 

Third: To the payment, equally and ratably, of the amounts pledged to the 
payment of the Certificates and Additional Obligations, if any. 

Any Net Revenues remaining in the System Fund after satisfying the foregoing 
payments, or making adequate and sufficient provision for the payment thereof, may be 
appropriated and used for any other City purpose now or hereafter permitted by law. 

SECTION 15: Deposits to Certificate Fund. Subject to the provisions of Section 13 
hereof, the City hereby covenants and agrees to cause to be deposited in the Certificate Fund 
from the pledged Net Revenues of the System in the System Fund, the amount of Net 
Revenues of the System pledged to the payment of the Certificates. 

The City covenants and agrees that the amount of pledged Net Revenues of the System 
($1,000), together with other lawfully available revenues appropriated by the City for payment of 
the debt service requirements on the Certificates and ad valorem taxes levied, collected, and 
deposited in the Certificate Fund for and on behalf of the Certificates, will be an amount equal to 
one hundred percent (100%) of the amount required to fully pay the iriterest and principal due 
and payable on the Certificates. In addition, any surplus proceeds from the sale of the 
Certificates not expended for authorized purposes shall be deposited in the Certificate Fund, 
and such amounts so deposited shall reduce the sums otherwise required to be deposited in 
said Fund from ad valorem taxes and the Net Revenues of the System. 

SECTION 16: Security of Funds. All moneys on deposit in the Funds for which this 
Ordinance makes provision (except any portion thereof as may be at any time properly 
invested) shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of Texas 
for the security of public funds, and moneys on deposit in such Funds shall be used only for the 
purposes permitted by this Ordinance. 

SECTION 17: Special Covenants. The City hereby further covenants as follows: 

(a) It has the lawful power to pledge the Net Revenues of the System to the payment 
of the Certificates in the manner herein contemplated and has lawfully exercised such power 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including said power existing under 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 1502, as amended, and Texas Local Govemment Code, 
Subchapter C of Chapter 271, as amended. 

(b) Other than for the payment of the Prior Lien Obligations and the Certificates, the 
Net Revenues of the System have not in any manner been pledged to the payment of any debt 
or obligation of the City or of the System. 

SECTION 18: Issuance of Prior Lien Obligations and Additional Parity Obligations. The 
City hereby expressly reserves the right to hereafter issue Prior Lien Obligations, without 
limitation as to principal amount but subject to any terms, conditions or restrictions applicable 
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thereto under law or otherwise, payable, in whole or in part, from the Net Revenues (without 
impairment of the obligation of contract with the Holders of the Certificates) upon such terms 
and conditions as the City Council may determine. Additionally, the City reserves the right to 
issue obligations payable, in whole or in part, from the Net Revenues of the System and, to the 
extent provided, secured by a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of equal rank and dignity 
with the lien and pledge securing the payment of the Certificates. 

SECTION 19: Application of Prior Lien Obligations Covenants and Agreements. It is the 
intention of this goveming body and accordingly hereby recognized and stipulated that the 
provisions, agreements and covenants contained herein bearing upon the management and 
operations of the System, and the administering and application of revenues derived from the 
operation thereof, shall to the extent possible be harmonized with like provisions, agreements 
and covenants contained in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Prior Lien 
Obligations, and to the extent of any irreconcilable conflict between the provisions contained 
herein and in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Prior Lien Obligations, the 
provisions, agreements and covenants contained therein shall prevail to the extent of such 
conflict and be applicable to this Ordinance but in all respects subject to the priority of rights and 
benefits, if any, conferred thereby to the holders of the Prior Lien Obligations. 

SECTION 20: Mutilated - Destroyed - Lost and Stolen Certificates. In case any 
Certificate shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent/Registrar may 
execute and deliver a replacement Certificate of like form and tenor, and in the same 
denomination and bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and 
substitution for such mutilated Certificate, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost 
or stolen Certificate, only upon the approval of the City and after (i) the filing by the Holder 
thereof with the Paying Agent/Registrar of evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
of the destruction, loss or theft of such Certificate, and of the authenticity of the ownership 
thereof and (ii) the fumishing to the Paying Agent/Registrar of indemnification in an amount 
satisfactory to hold the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar harmless. All expenses and 
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution and delivery of a 
replacement Certificate shall be bome by the Holder of the Certificate mutilated, or destroyed, 
lost or stolen. 

Every replacement Certificate issued pursuant to this Section shall be a valid and 
binding obligation, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably 
with all other Outstanding Certificates; notwithstanding the enforceability of payment by anyone 
of the destroyed, lost, or stolen Certificates. 

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all 
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, 
lost or stolen Certificates. 

SECTION 21: Satisfaction of Obligation of City. If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, 
or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Certificates, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance, then the pledge of 
taxes levied under this Ordinance and the Net Revenues of the System (to the extent such 
pledge of Net Revenues shall not have been discharged or terminated by prior payment of 
principal of or interest on the Certificates) and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations 
of the City to the Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and satisfied. 

Certificates or any principal amount(s) thereof shall be deemed to have been paid within 
the meaning and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (1) money sufficient to 
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pay in full such Certificates or the principal amount(s) thereof at maturity or the redemption date 
therefor, together with all interest due thereon, shall have been irrevocably deposited with and 
held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, or (11) Govemment 
Securities shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an 
authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities have been certified by an independent 
accounting firm to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any moneys 
deposited therewith, if any, to pay when due the principal of and interest on such Certificates, or 
the principal amount(s) thereof, on and prior to the Stated Maturity thereof or (if notice of 
redemption has been duly given or waived or if irrevocable arrangements therefor acceptable to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the redemption date thereof. The City covenants 
that no deposit of moneys or Govemment Securities-will be made under this Section and no use 
made of any such deposit which would cause the Certificates to be treated as "arbitrage bonds" 
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto. 

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow 
agent, and all income from Govemment Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
or an authorized escrow agent, pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of 
the Certificates, or any principal amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect to which 
such moneys have been so deposited shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by 
the City. Furthermore, any money held by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Certificates and remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) 
years after the Stated Maturity, or applicable redemption date, of the Certificates such moneys 
were deposited and are held in trust to pay shall upon the request of the City be remitted to the 
City against a written receipt therefor. Notwithstanding the above and foregoing, any remittance 
of funds from the Paying Agent/Registrar to the City shall be subject to any applicable 
unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas. 

SECTION 22: Ordinance a Contract - Amendments. This Ordinance shall constitute a 
contract with the Holders from time to time, be binding on the City, and shall not be amended or 
repealed by the City while any Certificates remain Outstanding except as permitted in this 
Section and in Section 36 hereof. The City may, without the consent of or notice to any 
Holders, from time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental 
to the interests of the Holders, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal 
defect or omission herein. In addition, the City may, with the consent of Holders hoiding a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding, amend, add to, or 
rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all Holders 
of Outstanding Certificates, no subh amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the 
time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates, 
reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption price or the rate of interest thereon, or in 
any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the 
Certificates, (2) give any preference to any Certificate over any other Certificate, or (3) reduce 
the aggregate principal amount of Certificates required to be held by Holders for consent to any 
such amendment, addition, or rescission. 
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SECTION 23: Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status. 

(a) Definitions. When used in this Section, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

"Closing Date means the date on which the Certificates are first authenticated and 
delivered to the initial purchasers against payment therefor. 

"Code" means the internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, if any, 
effective on or before the Closing Date. 

"Computation Date has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148 1(b) of the Regulations. 

"Gross Proceeds" means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148 1(b) of the 
Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148 1(c) of the Regulations, 
of the Certificates. 

"investment" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

"Nonpurpose Investmenr means any investment property, as defined in Section 148(b) 
of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Certificates are invested and which is not acquired 
to carry out the govemmental purposes of the Certificates. 

"Rebate Amount° has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148 1(b) of the Regulations. 

"Regulations" means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax Regulations issued 
pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and 103 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954, which are applicable to the Certificates. Any reference to any specific Regulation 
shall also mean, as appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax Regulation 
designed to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced. 

"Yiekr of (1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5 of the 
Regulations and (2) the Certificates has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-4 of the 
Regulations. 

(b) Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable. The City shall not use, permit the use 
of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross 
Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on any 
Certificate to become includable in the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of 
the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in 
the field of municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not 
adversely affect the exemption from federal income tax of the interest on any Certificate, the 
City shall comply with each of the specific covenants in this Section. 

(c) No Private Use or Private Payments. Except as permitted by Section 141 of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the last 
Stated Maturity of Certificates: 

(1) 	exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or 
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indirectly with Gross Proceeds of the Certificates, and not use or permit the use 
of such Gross Proceeds (including all contractual arrangements with terms 
different than those applicable to the general public) or any property acquired, 
constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity carried on by 
any person or entity (including the United States or any agency, department and 
instrumentality thereof) other than a state or local government, unless such use 
is solely as a member of the general public; and 

(2) 	not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other 
payment by any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the 
Certificates or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which 
is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds, 
other than taxes of general application within the City or interest earned on 
investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for their 
intended purposes. 

(d) No Private Loan. Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code and 
the Regulations and rulirigs thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the 
Certificates to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local 
government. For purposes of the foregoing covenant, such Gross Proceeds are considered to 
be "loaned" to a person or entity if: (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with such 
Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction which creates a debt 
for federal income tax purposes; (2) capacity in or service from such property is committed to 
such person or entity under a take or pay, output or similar contract or arrangement; or 
(3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross Proceeds or any 
property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds are otherwise transferred 
in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

(e) Not to Invest at Higher Yield. •Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to the 
final Stated EVlaturity of the Certificates directly or indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any 
Investment (or use Gross Proceeds to replace money so invested), if as a result of such 
investment the Yield from the Closing Date of all Investments acquired with Gross Proceeds (or 
with money replaced thereby), whether then held or previously disposed of, exceeds the Yield of 
the Certificates. 

(f) Not Federally Guaranteed. Except to the extent permitted by Section 149(b) of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any 
action which would • cause the Certificates to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of 
Section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

(g) Information Report. The City shall timely file the information required by Section 
149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038 G or such other form and 
in such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

(h) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder: 

(1) 	The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all 
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account 
separately and apart from all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and 
investments thereof) and shall retain all records of accounting for at least six 
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years after the day on which the last outstanding Certificate is discharged. 
However, to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross 
Proceeds of the Certificates with other money of the City, provided that the City 
separately accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the 
obligations acquired therewith. 

(2) Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall 
calculate the Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in Section 148(f) 
of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. The City shall maintain 
such calculations with its official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance 
of the Certificates until six years after the final Computation Date, 

(3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Certificates by 
the Underwriters and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to 
induce such purchase by measures designed to insure the excludability of the 
interest thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income 
tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United States from the construction fund, 
the general fund, or other appropriate fund or, if permitted by applicable Texas 
statute, regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the 
Certificate Fund, the amount that when added to the future value of previous 
rebate payments made for the Certificates equals (i) in the case of a Final 
Computation Date as defined in Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, one 
hundred percent (100%) of the Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case 
of any other Computation Date, ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on 
such date. In all cases, the rebate payments shall be made at the times, in the 
installments, to the place and in the manner as is or may be required by Section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, and shall be 
accompanied by Form 8038-T or such other forms and information as is or may 
be required by Section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings 
thereunder. 

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no 
errors are made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and 
(3), and if an error is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a 
reasonable amount of time thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty 
(180) days after discovery of the error), including payment to the United States of 
any additional Rebate Amount owed to it, interest thereon, and any penalty 
imposed under Section 1.148 3(h) of the Regulations. 

Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent perrnitted by Section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the 
earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Certificates, enter into any transaction that 
reduces the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection (h) of this 
Section because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have 
resulted if the transaction had been at arm's length and had the Yield of the Certificates not 
been relevant to either party. 

(j) 	Elections. The City hereby directs and authorizes the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, 
City Manager, Interim City Manager, Director of Finance and City Secretary, individually or 
collectively, to make elections permitted or required pursuant to the provisions of the Code or 
the Regulations, as they deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the Certificates, in 
the Certificate as to Tax Exemption or similar or other appropriate certificate, form or document. 
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SECTION 24: Sale of Certificates — Official Statement Approval. Pursuant to a public 
sale for the Certificates, the bid submitted by Raymond James & Associates, inc. (herein 
referred to as the "Underwriters") is declared to be the best bid received producing the lowest 
true interest cost rate to the City, and the sale of the Certificates to said Purchaser at the price 
of par plus a cash premium of $474,977.85 is hereby determined to be in the best interests of 
the City and is approved and confirmed. Delivery of the Certificates to the Underwriters shall 
occur as soon as possible upon payment being made therefor in accordance with the terms of 
sale. The Initial Certificate shall be registered as provided in the winning bid. 

The use of the Preliminary Official Statement by the Underwriters in connection with the 
public offering and sale of the Certificates is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all 
respects. The final Official Statement which reflects the terms of sale (together with such 
changes approved by the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Manager, Interim City Manager, Director 
of Finance and City Secretary, any one or more of said officials), shall be and is hereby in ali 
respects approved and the Underwriters are hereby authorized to use and distribute said final 
Official Statement, dated July 12, 2016, in the reoffering, sale and delivery of the Certificates to 
the public. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem and City Secretary are further authorized to deliver for 
and on behalf of the City copies of said Official Statement in final form as may be required by 
the Underwriters, and such final Official Statement in the form and content authorized to be 
deliyered by said officials shall be deemed to be approved by the City Council and constitute the 
Official Statement authorized for distribution and use by the Underwriters. 

SECTION 25: Proceeds of Sale. The proceeds of sale of the Certificates, excluding 
amounts to pay costs of issuance, shall be deposited in a construction fund maintained at a 
depository bank of the City. Pending expenditure for authorized projects and purposes, such 
proceeds of sale may be invested in authorized investments in accordance with the provisions 
of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, including guaranteed investment 
contracts permitted by Texas Govemment Code, Section 2256.015 et seq., as amended, and 
the Citys investment policies and guidelines, and any investment eamings realized may be 
expended for such authorized projects and purposes or deposited in the Certificate Fund as 
shall be deterrnined by the City Council. Any surplus proceeds of sale of the Certificates, 
including investment earnings, remaining after completion of all authorized projects or purposes 
shall be deposited to the credit of the Certificate Fund. 

SECTION 26: Control and Custody of Certificates. The Mayor of the City shall be and is 
hereby authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending the sale 
of the Certificates, the investigation by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, inciuding the 
printing and supply of definitive Certificates, and shall take and have charge and control of the 
Initial Certificate(s) pending the approval thereof by the Attorney General, the registration 
thereof by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and the delivery thereof to the Underwriters. 

SECTION 27: Notices to Holders Waiver. Wherever this Ordinance provides for notice 
to Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein 
expressly provided) if in writing and sent by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to 
the address of each Holder appearing in the Security Register at the close of business on the 
business day next preceding the mailing of such notice. 

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such 
notice to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the 
sufficiency of such notice with respect to all other Certificates. Where this Ordinance provides 
for notice in any manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive 
such notice, either before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given, and such 
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waiver shall be the equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of 
any action taken in reliance upon such waiver. 

SECTION 28: Cancellation. All Certificates surrenciered for payrnent, redernption, 
transfer, exchange, or replacement, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be 
promptly cancelled by it and, if surrendered to the City, shall be delivered to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and, if not already cancelled,_ shall be promptly cancelled by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. The City may at any time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation 
any Certificates previously certified or registered and delivered which the City may have 
acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all Certificates so delivered shall be promptly 
cancelled by the Paying Agent/Registrar. All cancelled Certificates held by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be returned to the City. 

SECTION 29: Bond Counsel's Opinion. The Underwriters obligation to accept delivery 
of the Certificates is subject to being fumished a final opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, 
Dallas, Texas, Bond Counsel to the City, approving the Certificates as to their validity, said 
opinion to be dated and delivered as of the date of delivery and payment for the Certificates. An 
executed counterpart of said opinion shall accompany the giobal certificates deposited with DTC 
or a reproduction thereof shall be printed on the definitive Certificates in the event the book-
entry-only system shall be discontinued. 

SECTION 30: CUS1P Numbers. CUSIP numbers may be printed or typed on the 
definitive Certificates. It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP 
numbers on the definitive Certificates shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality 
thereof and neither the City nor attorneys approving the Certificates as to legality are to be held 
responsible for CUS1P numbers incorrectly printed or typed on the definitive Certificates. 

SECTION 31: Benefits of Ordinance. Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied, 
is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the City, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by 
reason of this Ordinance or any provision hereof, and this Ordinance and all its provisions is 
intended to be and shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the Holders. 

SECTION 32: Inconsistent Provisions. All ordinances, orders or resolutions, or parts 
thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain 
controlling as to the matters contained herein. 

SECTION 33: Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 34: Effect of Headings. The Section headings herein are for convenience of 
reference only and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

SECTION 35: Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Ordinance, 
words of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural 
number shall be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or 
neuter gender shall be considered to include the other genders. 
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SECTION 36: Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

(a) Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings 
ascribed to such terms below: 

araRe means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

"Rule means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

"SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(b) Annual Reports. The City shall provide annually to the MSRB (1) within six 
months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2016, financial information and 
operating data with respect to the City of the general type of information contained in 1 through 
6, 8 through 14, 19 and 20 in the Official Statement, and (2) within twelve months after the end 
of each fiscal year ending in or after 2016, audited financial statements of the City. Any 
financial statements so provided shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 
described in described in Appendix B to the Official Statement, or such other accounting 
principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or 
regulation. If audited financial statements are not available within 12 months after the end of 
any fiscal year, the City will provide unaudited financial statements by the required time, and 
audited financial statements when and if such audited financial statements become available. 

If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site or filed with the SEC. 

(c) Notice of Certain Events. The City shall provide notice of any of the following 
events with respect to the Certificates to the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 
business days after occurrence of the event: 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 

perform; 
(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue 

Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Certificates, or 
other material events affecting the tax status of the Certificates; 

(7) Modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates, if material; 
(8) Certificate calls, if material, and tender offers; 
(9) Defeasances; 
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(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of 
the Certificates, if material; 

(11) Rating changes; 
(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, 

which shall occur as described below; 
(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition 

involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, 
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into of a 
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, 
other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of 
name of a trustee, if material. 

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding subsection (c)12 
is considered to occur when any of the following occur the appointment of a receiver, fiscal 
agent, or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or 
in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority 
has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing goveming body and officials or officers in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the City. 

The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide 
financial information or operating data in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section by the 
time required by such Section. 

(d) Filings with the MSRB. All financial information, operating data, financial 
statements, notices and other documents provided to the MSRB in accordance with this Section 
shall be provided in an electronic format prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by 
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

(e) Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. The City shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long 
as, the City remains an -obligated person" with respect to the Certificates within the meaning of 
the Rule, except that the City in any event will give the notice required by subsection (c) of this 
Section of arty Certificate calls and defeasance that cause the City to be no longer such an 
"obligated person." 

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates; and, nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit 
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The City 
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and 
nOtices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section. Except as expressly 
provided within this Section, the City does not undertake to provide any other information, 
whether or not it may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City's financial 
results, condition, or prospects; nor does the City undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Section or otherwise. Furthermore, the City does not make any 
representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest 
in or sell Certificates at any future date. 

27360327.3/11600971 
	

28 	 1481 

Celina Response to Staff 3-7 



UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER OR 
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE 
CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT 
SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, 
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall 
constitute a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this 
Ordinance. 

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the provisions of this Section may be 
amended by the City from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances resulting from a 
change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or 
type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so amended, 
would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates in the primary offering of 
the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circurnstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders and beneficial owners of the 
Certificates. The provisions of this Section may also be amended from time to time or repealed 
by the City if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final 
jurisdiction deterrnines that such provisions are invalid, but only if and to the extent that 
reservation of the City's right to do so would not prevent underwriters of the initial public offering 
of the Certificates from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates in such offering. If the City so 
amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or 
operating data next provided pursuant to subsection (b) of this Section an explanation, in 
narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of 
financial information or operating data so provided. 

SECTION 37: Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the 
application thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

SECTION 38: Further Procedures. Any one or more of the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City 
Manager, Interim City Manager, Director of Finance and City Secretary are hereby expressly 
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all 
such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and on behalf of the 
City all agreements, instruments, certificates or other documents, whether mentioned herein or 
not, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance and the issuance of the Certificates. In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the 
Certificates, the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Manager, Interim City Manager, Director of 
Finance and City Secretary or Bond Counsel to the City are each hereby authorized and 
directed to approve any changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the documents 
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authorized and approved by this Ordinance: (i) in order to cure any ambiguity, formal defect or 
omission in the Ordinance or such other document; or (ii) as requested by the Attomey General 
of the State of Texas or his representative to obtain the approval of the Certificates by the 
Attorney General and if such officer or counsel determines that such changes are consistent 
with the intent and purpose of the Ordinance, which determination shall be final. In the event 
that any officer of the City whose signature shall appear on any document shall cease to be 
such officer before the delivety of such document, such signature nevertheless shall be valid 
and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such 
delivery. 

SECTION 39: Incorporation of Findings and Determinations. 	The findings and 
determinations of the City Council contained in the preamble hereof are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes as if the same were restated in full 
in this Section. 

SECTION 40: Public Meeting. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, 
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this 
Ordinance, was given, all as required by Texas Govemment Code, Chapter 551, as amended. 

SECTION 41: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its adoption on the date shown below in accordance with Texas Government Code, 
Section 1201.028, as amended. 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED, this July 19, 2016. 

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 
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EXHIBIT A 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 
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PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 

TE-IIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of July 19, 2016 (this "Agreement"), by and 
between U.S. Bank National Association, a banking association duly organized and existing 
under the laws of the United States of America, or its successors (the "Bank") and the City of 
Celina, Texas (the "Issuer), 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its "City of 
Celina, Texas, Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System (Limited Pledge) Revenue Certificates 
of Obligation, Series 2016" (the "Securities"), dated July 1, 2016, such Securities scheduled to 
be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof on or about August 10, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has selected the Bank to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar in 
connection with the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on said Securities 
and with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange thereof by the registered owners 
thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to serve in such capacities for and on behalf of the 
Issuer and has full power and authority to perform and serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
Securities; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE ONE 
APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

Section 1.01 Appointment. The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to serve as Paying 
Agent with respect to the Securities, and, as Paying Agent for the Securities, the Bank shall be 
responsible for paying on behalf of the issuer the principal, prernium (if any), and interest on the 
Securities as the same become due and payable to the registered owners thereof; all in 
accordance with this Agreement and the "Authorizing Document" (hereinafter defined). The 
Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities and, as Registrar for 
the Securities, the Bank shall keep and maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer books and 
records as to the ownership of said Securities and with respect to the transfer and exchange 
thereof as provided herein and in the Authorizing Document. 

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to serve as the Paying Agent and 
Registrar for the Securities. 

Section 1.02 Compensation.  As compensation for the Bank's services as Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hereby agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in 
Annex A attached hereto. 

In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable 
expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any 
of the provisions hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and 
disbursements of its agents and counsel). 
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ARTICLE TWO 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 2.01 Definitions.  For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise 
expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires: 

"Acceleration Date" on any Security means the date, if any, on and after 
which the principal or any or all installments of interest, or both, are due and 
payable on any Security which has become accelerated pursuant to the terms of 
the Security. 

"Authorizing Document" means the resolution, order, or ordinance of the 
governing body. of tha Issuer pursuant to which the Securities are issued, as the 
same may be amended or modified, including any pricing certificate related 
thereto, certified by the secretary or any other officer of the Issuer and delivered 
to the Bank. 

tank Office" means the designated office of the Bank at the address 
shown in Section 3.01 hereof. The Bank will notify the Issuer in writing of any 
change in location of the Bank Office., 

"Holder" and "Security Holder each means the Person in whose name a 
Security is registered in the Security Register. 

Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or 
government or any agency or political subdivision of a government. 

"Predecessor Securities" of any particular Security means every previous 
Security evidencing all or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by 
such particular Security (and, for the purposes of this definition, any mutilated, 
lost, destroyed, or stolen Security for which a replacement Security has been 
registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 4.06 hereof and the 
Authorizing IDocument). 

"Redemption Date, when used with respect to any Security to be 
redeemed, means the date fixed for such redemption pursuant to the terms of the 
Authorizing Document. 

"Responsible Officer, when used with respect to the Bank, means the 
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or 
Vice-Chairrnan of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors, the 
President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the 
Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Cashier, any Assistant Cashier, any 
Trust Officer or Assistant Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank 
customarily performing functions similar to those performed by any of the above 
designated officers and also means, with respect to a particular corporate trust 
matter, any other officer to whorn such matter is referred because of his 
knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject. 
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"Security Register means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of 
the Issuer providing for the registration and transfers of Securities. 

"Stated Maturity" means_ the date specified in the Authorizing Document 
the principal of a Security is scheduled to be due and payable. 

Section 2.02 Other Definitions. 	The terms "Bank," "Issuer," and "Securities 
(Security)" have the meanings assigned to them in the recital paragraphs of this Agreement. 

The term "Paying Agent/Registrar refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties 
and functions of this Agreement 

ARTICLE THREE 
PAYING AGENT 

Section 3.01 Duties of Paying AcKInt.  As Paying Agent, the Bank shall pay, provided 
adequate collected funds have been provided to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the 
Issuer, on behalf of the Issuer the principal of each SecuritY at its Stated Maturity, Redemption 
Date or Acceleration Date, to the Holder upon surrender of the Security to the Bank at the 
following address: 

U.S. Bank National Association 
Attention: Bond Operations 
111 Fillmore Avenue East 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55107-1402 

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided 
to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the interest on 
each Security when due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder and 
making payinent thereof to the Holders of the Securities (or their Predecessor Securities) on the 
Record Date (as defined in the Authorizing Document). All payments of principal and/or interest 
on the Securities to the registered owners shall be accomplished (1) by the issuance of checks, 
payable to the registered owners, drawn on the paying agent account provided in Section 5.05 
hereof, sent by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address appearing on the 
Security Register or (2) by such other method, acceptable to the Bank, requested in writing by 
the Holder at the Holders risk and expense. 

Section 3.02 Payment Dates.  The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Securities on the dates specified in the Authorizing Document. 

ARTICLE FOUR 
REGISTRAR 

Section 4.01 SecuriV Register Transfers and Exchanges.  The Bank agrees to 
keep and maintain for and on behalf of the Issuer at the Bank Office books and records (herein 
sometimes referred to as the "Security Register) for recording the names and addresses of the 
Holders of the Securities, the transfer, exchange and replacement of the Securities and the 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders and containing such 
other information as may be reasonably required by the Issuer and subject to such reasonable 
regulations as the Issuer and the Bank may prescribe. The Bank represents and warrants its 
office in Dallas, Texas will at all times have immediate access to the Security Register by 
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electronic or other means and will be capable at all times of producing a hard copy of the 
Security Register at its Dallas office for use by the Issuer. All transfers, exchanges and 
replacernents of Securities shall be noted in the Security Register. 

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be 
accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed 
by an officer of a federal or state bank or a member of the National Association of Securities 
Dealers, such written instrument to be in a form satisfactory to the Bank and duly executed by 
the Holder thereof or his agent duly authorized in writing. 

The Bank may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a 
re-registration, transfer or exchange of the Securities. 

To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, the Bank agrees that, in 
relation to an exchange or transfer Of Securities, the exchange or transfer by the Holders thereof 
will be completed and new Securities delivered to the Holder or the assignee of the Holder in 
not more than three (3) business days after the receipt of the Securities to be cancelled in an 
exchange or transfer and the written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly 
executed by the Holder, or his duly authorized agent, in form and manner satisfactory to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 4.02 Securities.  The Issuer shall provide additional Securities when needed 
to facilitate transfers or exchanges thereof. The Bank covenants that such additional Securities, 
if and when provided, will be kept in safekeeping pending their use and reasonable care will be 
exercised by the Bank in maintaining such Securities in safekeeping, which shall be not less 
than the care maintained by the Bank for debt securities of other govemments or corporations 
for which it serves as registrar, or that is maintained for its own securities. 

Section 4.03 Form of Security Register.  The Bank, as Registrar, will maintain the 
Security Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer and exchange of the Securities 
in accordance with the Bank's general practices and procedures in effect from time to time. The 
Bank shall not be obligated to maintain such Security Register in any forrn other than those 
which the Bank has currently available and currently utilizes at the time. 

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of 
being converted into written form within a reasonable time. 

Section 4.04 List of Security Holders. The Bank will provide the Issuer at any time 
requested by the Issuer, upon payment of the required fee, a copy of the information contained 
in the Security Register. The Issuer may also inspect the information contained in the Security 
Register at any time the Bank is customarily open for business, provided that reasonable time is 
allowed the Bank to provide an up-to-date listing or to convert the information into written form. 

The Bank will not release or disclose the contents of the Security Register to any person 
other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee of the Issuer, except 
upon receipt of a court order or as otherwise required by law. Upon receipt of a court order and 
prior to the release or disclosure of the contents of the Security Register, the Bank will notify the 
Issuer so that the Issuer may contest the court oider or such release or disclosure of the 
contents of the Security Register. 

Section 4.05 Return of Cancelled Securities.  The Bank will, at such reasonable 
intervals as it determines, surrender to the Issuer, all Securities in lieu of which or in exchange 
for which other Securities have been issued, or which have been paid. 
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Section 4.06 Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Securities.  The Issuer hereby 
instructs the Bank, subject to the provisions of the Authorizing Document, to deliver and issue 
Securities in exchange for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities as long as 
the same does not result in an overissuance. 

In case any Security shall be mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen, the Bank may execute 
and deliver a replacement Security of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and 
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such 
mutilated Security, or in lieu of and in substitution for such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen 
Security, only upon the approval of the Issuer and after (i) the filing by the Holder thereof with 
the Bank of evidence satisfaptory to the Bank of the destruction, loss or theft of such Security, 
and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the fumishing to the Bank of 
indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the Issuer and the Bank harmless. An 
expenses and charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution and 
delivery of a replacement Security shall be bome by the Holder of the Security mutilated, 
destroyed, lost or stolen. 

Section 4.07 Transaction Information to Issuer.  The Bank will, within a reasonable 
time after receipt of written request from the Issuer, fumish the Issuer information as to the 
Securities it has paid pursuant to Section 3.01, Securities it has delivered upon the transfer or 
exchange of any Securities pursuant to Section 4.01, and Securities it has delivered in 
exchange for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities pursuant to 
Section 4.06. 

ARTICLE FIVE 
THE BANK 

Section 5.01 Duties of Bank.  The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth 
herein and agrees to use reasonable care in the performance thereof. 

Section 5.02 Reliance on Documents, Etc. 

(a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and 
correctness of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or opinions furnished to the Bank. 

(b) The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a 
Responsible Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the 
pertinent facts. 	. 

(c) No provisions of this Agreernent shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own 
funds or otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or 
in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing 
that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or 
liability is not assured to it. 

(d) The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon 
any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, 
consent, order, bond, note, security or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and 
to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties. Without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing statement, the Bank need not examine the ownership of any Securities, but is 
protected in acting upon receipt of Securities Containing an endorsement or instruction of 
transfer or power of transfer which appears on its face to be signed by the Holder or an agent 
of the Holder. The Bank shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters 
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stated in a resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, 
direction, consent, order, bond, note, security or other paper or document supplied by the 
Issuer. 

(e) The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or 
any opinion of counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to 
any action taken, suffered, or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon. 

(f) The Bank may exercise any of the powers hereunder and perform any duties 
hereunder either directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank. 

(g) The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial 
delivery of the Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum or letter as 
prepared by the Issuer, Issuers financial advisor or other agent. The Bank may act on a 
facsimile or e-mail transmission of the closing memorandum or letter acknowledged by the 
Issuer, the Issuer's financial advisor or other agent as the final closing memorandum or letter. 
The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from 
the Bank's reliance upon and compliance with such instructions. 

Section 5.03 Recitals of issuer.  The recitals contained herein with respect to the 
issuer and in the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer, and the Bank 
assurnes no responsibility for their correctness. 

The Bank shall in no event be liable to the issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, 
or any other Person for any arnount due on any Security frorn its own funds. 

Section 5.04 May Hold Securities.  The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity, 
may become the owner or pledgee of Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the 
sarne rights it would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any other agent. 

Section 5.05 Moneys Held by Bank - Paying Agent Account/Collateralization.  A 
paying agent account shall at all times be kept and maintained by the Bank for the receipt, 
safekeeping, and disbursement of moneys received from the issuer under this Agreement for 
the payment of the Securities, and money deposited to the credit of such account until paid to 
the Holders of the Securities shall be continuously collateralized by securities or obligations 
which qualify and are eligible under both the laws of the State of Texas and the laws of the 
United States of America to secure and be pledged as collateral for paying agent accounts to 
the extent such money is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Payments 
made from such paying agent account shall be made by check drawn on such account unless 
the owner of the Securities shall, at its own expense and risk, request an alternative method of 
payment. 

Subject to the applicable unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas, any money 
deposited with the Bank for the payment of the principal of, premium (if any), or interest on any 
Security and remaining unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security has become 
due and payable will be held by the Bank and disposed of only in accordance with Title 6 of the 
Texas Property Code, as amended. The Bank shall have no liability by virtue of actions taken in 
compliance with this provision. 

The Bank is not obligated to pay interest on any money received by it under this 
Agreement 
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This Agreement relates solely to money deposited for the purposes described herein, 
and the parties agree that the Bank may serve as depository for other funds of the Issuer, act as 
trustee under indentures authorizing other bond transactions of the Issuer, or act in any other 
capacity not in conflict with its duties hereunder. 

Section 5.06 Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer agrees to 
indemnify the Bank for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense incurred 
without negligence or bad faith on its part, arising out of or in connection with its acceptance or 
administration of its duties hereunder, including the cost and expense against any claim or 
liability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties under this 
Agreement. 

Section 5.07 intergleader.  The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek 
adjudication of any adverse claim, demand, or controversy over its person as well as funds on 
deposit, in either a Federal or State District Court located in the state and county where the 
administrative office of the Issuer is located, and agree that service of process by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, to the address referred to in Section 6.03 of this 
Agreement shall constitute adequate service. The Issuer and the Bank further agree that the 
Bank has the right to file a Bill of Interpleader in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State 
of Texas to determine the rights of any Person claiming any interest herein. 

Section 5.08 DTC Services.  It is hereby represented and warranted that, in the event 
the Securities are othetwise qualified and accepted for "Depository Trust Company" services or 
equivalent depository trust services by other organizations, the Bank has the capability and, to 
the extent within its control, will comply with the "Operational Arrangements", which establishes 
requirements for securities to be eligible for such type depository trust services, including, but 
not limited to, requirements for the timeliness of payments and funds availability, transfer 
turnaround time, and notification of redemptions and calls. 

ARTICLE.SIX 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 6.01 Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in 
writing signed by both of the parties hereto. 

Section 6.02 Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either party 
without the prior written consent of the other. 

Section 6.03 Notices.  Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, 
waiver, or other document provided or permitted hereby to be given or fumished to the Issuer or 
the Bank shall be mailed or delivered to the issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses 
shown on the signature page(s) hereof. 

Section 6.04 Effect of Headings.  The Article and Section headings herein are for 
convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

Section 6.05 Successors and Assigns.  All covenants and agreements herein by the 
Issuer shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not 
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Section 6.06 Severability.  In case apy provision herein shall be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in 
any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 6.07 Merger, Conversion, Consolidation, or Succession.  Arty corporation 
or association into which the Bank may be merged or converted or with which it may be 
consolidated, or any corporation or association resulting from any merger, conversion, or 
consolidation to which the Bank shall be a party, or any corporation or association succeeding 
to all or substantially all of the corporate trust business of the Bank shall be the successor of the 
Bank as Paying Agent under this Agreement without the execution or filing of any paper or any 
further act on the part of either parties hereto. 

Section 6.08 Benefits of Agreement.  Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give to 
any Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder. 

Section 6.09 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the Authorizing Document 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying 
Agent/Registrar and if any conflict exists between this Agreement and the Authorizing 
Document, the Authorizing Document shall govem. 

Section 6.10 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same Agreement. 

Section 6.11 Termination.  This Agreement will terminate (i) on the date of final 
payrnent of the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders thereof or (ii) may be 
earlier terminated by either party upon sixty (60) days written notice; provided, however, an 
early termination of this Agreement by either party shall not be effective until (a) a successor 
Paying Agent/Registrar has been appointed by the Issuer and such appointment accepted and 
(b) notice has been given to the Holders of the Securities of the appointment of a successor 
Paying Agent/Registrar. However, if the Issuer fails to appoint a successor Paying 
Agent/Registrar within a reasonable time, the Bank may petition a court of competent 
jurisdiction within the State of Texas to appoint a successor. Furthermore, the Bank and the 
Issuer mutually agree that the effective date of an early termination of this Agreement shall not 
occur at any time which would disrupt, delay or otherwise adversely affect the payment of the 
Securities. 

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and 
deliver the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with the other pertinent books and 
records relating to the Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and 
appointed by the Issuer. 

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force 
and effect following the termination of this Agreement. 

Section 6.12 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
and govemed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally.] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreernent as of the 
day and year first above written. 

U. S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

By: 	  

Title: 	  

Address: 13737 Noel Road, Suite 800 
Dallas, Texas 75240 
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

By: 	  
Mayor 

Address: 142 North Ohio Street 
Celina, Texas 75009 

Attest: 

City Secretary 
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Corporate Trust Services 
13737 Noel Road, Suite 800 
Dallas, TX 75240 

Schedule of Fees for Services as 
Paying Agent, Registrar 

For 
CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 

TAX & WATERWORKS & SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE COS, SERIES 2016 
Administrative Fees Billed Annually 

Paying Agent, Annual 
Annual account administration fee covers the routine duties of paying agent and registrar 	$450 
associated with the administration of the account. Administration fees are payable In advance. 	Annual 

Direct Out of Pocket Expenses 
Reimbursement of expenses associated with the performance of our duties, including but not 	At Cost 
limited to publications, legal counsel after the initial close, travel expenses and filing fees. 

Extraordinaty Serviees 
Extraordinary services are duties or responsibilities of an unusual nature, including termination, 
but not provided for in the goveming documents or otherwise set forth in this schedule. A 
reasonable charge will be assessed based on the nature of the service ancl the responsibility 
involved. At our option, these charges will be billed at a flat fee or at our hourly rate then in 
effect. A $300 fee will be assessed on optional redemptions 

Account approval is subject to review and qualification. Fees are subject to change at our discretion and upon written notice. Fees 
paid in advance wll not be prorated. The fees set forth above and any subsequent modifications thereof are part of your 
agreement. Finalization of the transaction constitutes agreement to the above fee schedule, including agreement to any 
subsequent changes upon proper written notice. In the event your transaction is not finalized, any related out-of-pocket expenses 
will be billed to you directly. Absent your written instructions to sweep or otherwise invest all sums in your account will remain 
uninvested and no accrued interest or other compensation will be credited to the account. Payment of fees constitutes acceptance 
of the tenns and conditions set forth, 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT: 	 • 
To help the govemment fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial institutions 
to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person who opens an account 
For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a Trust or other legal entity we will ask for documentation to verify 
its formation and existence as a legal entity. We may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization 
documents from individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation. 

Dated: June 7, 2016 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Dated August 8, 2017 

Rating: 
S&P: "A A-'' 
(see "OTHER INFORMATION — 
Rating? herein) 

NEW ISSUE - Book-Entiy-Only 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Certificates will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under existing law, subject to the matters described under "TAX MATTERS" herein, including the alternative minimum tax on 
corporations. 

THE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN DESIGNATED  
AS "QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS" FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

$9,500,000 
CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS 
(Collin and Denton Counties) 

TAX AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM (LIMITED PLEDGE) REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2017 

Dated Date: August 1, 2017 	 Due: September 1, as shown on page 2 
Interest accrues from date of delivery 

PAYMENT TERMS. . . Interest on the $9,500,000 City of Celina, Texas, Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System (Limited Pledge) Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017 (the "Certificates") will accrue from the date of delivery (anticipated to be September 7, 2017), and 
will be payable March I and September 1 of each year commencing March 1, 2018, until maturity or prior redemption, and will be 
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive Certificates will be initially registered and 
delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company (DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described 
herein. Beneficial ownership of the Certificates may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a maturity. 
No physical delivery of the Certificates will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Certificates will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the 
participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Certificates (see "THE CERTIFICATES - Book-
Entry-Only System" herein). The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is U.S. Bank National Association, Dallas, Texas (see "THE 
CERTIFICATES - Paying Agent/Registrai). 

AunioRrry FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Certificates are issued pursuant to the City's Ilome Rule Charter, the Constitution and general laws of 
the State of Texas (the ''State"), particularly Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and constitute 
direct obligations of the City of Celina, Texas (the "City"), payable from a combination of (i) the levy and collection of an annual ad 
valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within the City, and (ii) a limited pledge (not to exceed $1,000) 
of the Net Revenues from the operation of the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, as provided in the ordinance authorizing the issuance 
of the Certificates (the "Ordinance) (see "THE CERTIFICATES — Authority for Issuance of the Certificates"). 

PURPOSE. . . Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for (i) 
acquiring equipment and vehicles for the fire, parks and public works departments, (ii) constructing street improvements, including 
drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage and traffic signalization and the acquisition of 
land and rights-of-way therefor, (iii) acquiring, constructing and equipping buildings, structures and facilities for the public works 
department, City Hall, the fire department and the police department, (iv) the acquisition, installation and improvement of municipal 
information technology systems, public safety and emergency management communications and radio systems, and public safety records 
management systems, (v) constructing, improving and equipping park and recreational facilities, (vi) improving and extending the City's 
combined Waterworks and Sewer System, including the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor and (vii) professional services 
rendered in connection with such projects and the financing thereof (together, the "Project"). 

CUSIP PREFIX: 151141 
MATURITY SCHEDULE & 9 DIGIT CUSIP 

See Schedule on Page 2 

LEGALITY . . The Certificates are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the Initial Purchaser and subject to the 
approving opinion of the Attorney General of Texas and the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Bond Counsel, Dallas, Texas, (see 
Appendix C, "Form of Bond Counsel's Opinion"). 

DELWERY. . It is expected that the Certificates will be available for delivery through DTC on September 7, 2017. 
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Principal 

Amount 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

M aturity 	Interest 	Initial 

1-Sept 	Rate 	Yield 

CUSIP Prefix: 151141 (I) 

CUS1P 

Suffix U)  

$470,000 2018 3.250% 0.880% TZ(1) 

350,000 2019 3.250% 1.000% UA (4) 

365,000 2020 3.250% 1.100% UB(2) 

375,000 2021 3.250% 1.220% UC(0) 

385,000 2022 3.000% 1.370% UD (8) 

395,000 2023 3.000% 1.550% UE(6) 

415,000 2024 3.000% 1.750% UF(3) 

425,000 2025 3.000% 1.950% UG(1) 

440,000 2026 3.000% 2.120% UH(9) 

450,000 2027 2.250% 2.350% UJ(5) 

470,000 2028 2.500% 2.600% UK (2) 

485,000 2029 3.000% 2.740% (2)  UL(0) 

495,000 2030 3.000% 2.820% (2)  UM (8) 

515,000 2031 3.000% 2.900% (2)  UN(6) 

530,000 2032 3.000% 3.000% UP(1) 

550,000 2033 3.000% 3.080% UQ (9) 

570,000 2034 3.000% 3.120% UR(7) 

585,000 2035 3.000% 3.150% US(5) 

605,000 2036 3.000% 3.180% UT(3) 

625,000 2037 3.125% 3.200% UU(0) 

(Interest to accrue from the date of delivery.) 

(1) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data set forth herein is provided by CUS1P 
Global Services managed by S&P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of The American Bankers Association. This data is 
not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for CUS1P services. Neither the City, the 
Financial Advisor nor the Purchasers shall be responsible for the selection or correctness of the CUSIP numbers set forth 
herein. 

(2) Yield shown is yield to first call date, September 1, 2027. 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION . . The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Certificates having stated maturities on or after 
September 1, 2028, in whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, on September 1, 2027, or 
any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption (see "THE CERTIFICATES - Optional 
Redemption7). 
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